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SCOUTS - CREATING ABETTER WORLD



Try to leave this world a little better than you found it
and, when your turn comes to die, you can die happy in feeling that at any rate
you have not wasted your time but have done your best.

Robert Stephenson Smyth Baden-Powell
FOUNDER OF THE INTERNATIONAL SCOUTING MOVEMENT



MISSION

““To contribute to the education of young people,
through a value system based on the Scout Promise and Law,
to help build a better world where people are self-fulfilled as individuals
and play a constructive role in society.”

VISION

“That by 2023, Scouting will be the world’s leading educational
youth movement, enabling 100 million young people to be active citizens,
creating positive change in their communities and in the world,
based on shared values.”

The Vision for Scouting, Vision 2023, was adopted at the 40th World Scout Conference in Ljubljana, Slovenia in 2014.

VISION - SLSA

“By 2023, Sri Lanka Scout Association will be recognized
as a dynamic youth organisation for developing leadership qualities
through a value-based non-formal educational system attending to the needs
and aspirations of young people consolidating the national unity of Sri Lanka,
with a membership of 108,000.”

THE SCOUT PROMISE

On my honour, | promise to do my best.
To do my duty to my religion and my country.
To help other people at all times and to obey the Scout law.

THE SCOUT LAW

1. A Scout is trustworthy

2. A Scout is loyal
3. A Scout is friendly and considerate
4. A Scout is a brother to every other scout
5. A Scout is courageous
6. A Scout is kind to animals
7. A Scout is co-operative
8. A Scout is cheerful
9. A Scout is thrifty
10. A Scout is clean in thought, word, and deed



THE MOST IMPORTANT OBJECT
IN SCOUT TRAINING I5 TO
FEDUCATE, NOT INSTRUCT

SIR ROBERT BADEN-POWELL
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HISTORY O F SRI LANKA SCOUTING

SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION

Scouting  was  started
in Sri Lanka 109 vyears
ago in 1912, initiated by
a British colonial civil
engineer Mr. F. G Stephen
then residing in the Matale
Administrative District
in the Central Province.
Within a few years the
movement spread to other
parts of the island more
particularly to the administrative districts of Kandy,
Colombo, Galle and Jaffna

At the time of Mr. Stephen’s departure from the
Island in 1945, branch associations had been opened
in several other districts making a total of 20 Branch
Associations. The Ceylon Scout Council was enacted
by Act No. 13 of 1957 and known as Ceylon Scout
Association which is presently known as Sri Lanka
Scout Association. The National Headquarters was
at No. 121, Baladaksha Mawatha, Colombo 2 and in
1980 was shifted to the present location at No. 65/9,
Sir Chittampalam A. Gardiner Mawatha, Colombo 2
as the land was acquired by the state.

The first Jamboree was held in Sri Lanka in Colombo
in the Year 1959. This was followed by eight other
National Jamborees held in Colombo, Anuradhapura,
Kurunegala,  Balapitiya (Galle), Nuwara Eliya,
Kandy, Hambantota, and Jaffna. In addition to these
National Jamborees, held as far as possible in intervals
of four Years , the Association also staged the 1st
SAARC Jamboree in 1990 with the participation
of several National Scout Organisations in the Indian
subcontinent, and also hosted one SAF Friendship
Camp. The Sri Lanka Centenary Scout Jamboree and
the 29th APR Jamboree was held in 2012 in Dambulla
with the participation of over 900 overseas Scouts,
Leaders and Officials, in which Jamboree a special 3
day package was introduced to Leaders and Officials
for the first time from overseas which is now continued
in all APR and most other Jamborees. In addition the
SLSA has been organizing National Cubborees and
Rover Moots regularly.

On 2nd September 2009 the Foundation Stone was
laid for a 6 storied building with a basement car park
and on 22nd December 2015 the said building “B P
House” was ceremonially declared opened. Opening
the movement out for Girls was a new step for the
organization and this was cautiously implemented in

stages with the first Girl recruits being enrolled as Cubs
on a proposal made by the then Chief Commissioner.

In 2009 the stage was set for enrolling Girl Scouts
in the age group of 12 to 17. By the time of planning
the APR Jamboree in 2012, Girls in Scouting had a
membership of 5500 including leaders and had by
then enjoyed camping experience having attended two
national Jamborees and also taken part in 3 overseas
friendship camps in Bhutan, Bangladesh and India.
The Two training centers, Lee Dassanaike Training
Center in Mirigama and Pedro Camp Site in Nuwara
Eliya are regularly maintained and used by both Scouts
and Leaders.

SLSA has organized and hosted several APR
Workshops and apart from hosting the 29th APR
Jamboree, organized and hosted the 8th APR Top
Leader’s Summit in Negombo in 2014 where all
Top Leaders from the APR Region, the World Scout
Committee and World Scout Bureau attended. In
addition the WOSM Governance Task Force Meeting
was also held in Marawila in 2014.

The first Sri Lankan, Janaprith Fernando was elected
to the Asia Pacific Regional Scout Committee in 2012
and, in 2017, was elected to the World Scout Committee
at the World Scout Conference in Baku, Azerbaijan.
The SLSA continued its activities even during
pandemic which started in March 2020 and organized
many online programmes for scouts and leaders. The
1st ever Global Cultural Jamboree organized fully
virtually in July 2021, had a participation of almost
24,000 scouts from over 100 countries. SL Scouts
110 Year Celebrations were held on 23rd December
2022 simultaneously in

all districts conducting

processions,  model

camps and campfires

where over 35,000

scouts participated.

The SLSAisaleading
National Scout
Organisation out of
the 173 member
nations of the World
Organisation of the
Scout  Movement
and a part of the
Asia Pacific
Region.



SRI LANKA SCOUT COUNCIL

(Incorporated by Act No. 13 of 1957)

PATRON & CHIEF SCOUT
His Excellency The President of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

VICE PATRONS
Hon Prime Minister
Hon Chief Justice
Hon Minister of Education
Hon Leader of the Opposition

PRESIDENT
Mr Srinath Goonarathne

VICE PRESIDENTS (EX-OFFICIO)
The Commander of the Sri Lanka Army
The Commander of the Sri Lanka Navy
The Commander of the Sri Lanka Air Force
The Inspector General of Police
The Secretary to the President
The Secretary to the Ministry of Education

VICE PRESIDENTS (ELECTED)
Mrs Mallika Gunaratne
Mr Lalith Sirimewan Kulatunge
Mr Suminda Vithanaarachchi
Rev Bro K H Kumarasinge Perera

CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE
Mr Ransiri Perera

HONY. SECRETARY
Mr M J Sadik Ameen

HONY. TREASURER
Mr K B G Kumudu Priya Sampath

WE NEVER FAIL WHEN WE TRY TO DO
OUR DUTY, WE ALWAYS FAIL WHEN
WE NEGLECT TO DO T

SIR ROBERT BADEN-POWELL
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It is my pleasure to send this message to the SLSA
Annual Report of the year ending 2022 as the
President of the Council.

Throughout the reporting year, numerous significant
developments and reforms occurred. This vyear,
a major focus was placed on increasing the
organization’s efficiency through the enhancement
of existing infrastructure facilities and the effective
implementation of planned engagements while
prudently managing the available money to maximize
the benefits anticipated.

In this regard, the Chief Commissioner together
with the Deputy Chief Commissioner, and the team
provided an extensive amount of their available time
to complete the assigned task to them. In Addition,
we were able to accomplish much awaited GSAT
certification process with the support of specialised
teams led by CC and DCC.

We owe this accomplishment to the chairman and the
executive committee of the council for fostering an
environment that made it possible to carry out tasks
and make decisions without any interruption.

Due to the council’s chairman, chief commissioner,
and the other commissioners, we were able to
achieve the outcomes we had predicted for the year
successfully.

Also, we have observed a sharp increase in the number
of girls participating in scouting, Rover Scouts, Cub
Scouts, and Sigithi Scouts, which has increased their
visibility and awareness among the general public,
including decision-makers, educators, and parents.

With the participation of the SLSA office holders
and scouts representing all levels completed, H.E.
Ranil Wickramasinghe, President of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, was installed as
Chief Scout during this time. He pledged his full
support and asked for an increase in membership to
200,000 by the year 2024.

Mr Srinath Goonerathne
PRESIDENT, SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION

During this period syllabuses were also updated,
new Proficiency Badges, including the Prime
Minister’s Badge, were implemented, and the training
department’s capacities were expanded in terms of
both quantity and quality.

The SLSA event commissioners have been instructed
to maintain all financial matters accountable and
transparent by being reasonable and cautious with
their spending.

During the reporting period, council was alerted about
external and internal treats and man-made disputes and
natural disasters and we were able to mitigate threats
reasonably with the support of in-house experts.

Further, a number of special expert committees were
appointed to look into the problems and weakness of
certain sections, amoung them ‘scout shop committee’
took a lead role and have been very much actively
involved in solving issues.

In this sense all are invited to practice utmost efforts
and professionalism to safe guard and maximise usage
of the limited resources of the movement.

| take this opportunity extend my courtesy to Chief
Commissioner and all committees set-up to organize
10th National Jamboree planned to be held in
Trincomalee district in 2024.

A mini museum was established to archive the
valuable items belongs to the movement, also,
explored the possibility in uplifting level of training
up to graduation.

| take this opportunity to thank all organizing
committees for their dedicated voluntary services,
Officials of the branch Association, scout masters,
District Commissioners and their teams, national
and head-quarters level commissioners, parents,
commercial establishments, auditors who rendered
their valuable services to make skill full youths.



It is my pleasure to send this message to the Annual
Report of the Sri Lanka Scout Association for the
year ended 2022 as Chairman of the Committee of
the Council.

The present committee of the council was appointed in
end of May 2022, and we have number of challenges
to address. As we know since 2020, due to the Corona
Pandemic situation in the country we were unbale to
function as usual and the unusual political situation
developed in the country from March 2022. | am very
happy to inform you that, with the leadership of Chief
Commissioner and his team was very positively
address this matter and overcome all the challenges
and able to proceed with normal way in the second
half of the year.

During the period of 2022/23, our committee has
paid more attention to rectify the financialsystem
weaknesses and to implement the necessary controls
and eliminate the wastages. This is not an easy
task, and we cannot be complete it overnight. The
especially | need to express my sincere appreciation
to our Treasurer, Mr. Sampath Kariyawasam, Mr.
Nanda Corea, Special Commissioner (Financial) and

Mr Ransiri Perera
CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE
SRI LANKA SCOUT COUNCIL

all members in the Finance Sub Committee for their
commitment and contribution made to clear disputes
in our accounts and implement proper methods. |
hope that the upcoming committee will also continue
to introduce the transparency and good governor’s
policy to this great movement.

I would like to express my sincere appreciation to
Mr. Janapprith Fernando, Chief Commissioner and
Council Members for inviting me to take over this
position once again and electing me to the position
with the ‘uncontested title” after lapse of four years.
That shows and encourages me to see that, most
members in the council as well as majority of senior
commissioners have accepted my way, | worked in
this position previously. Hence, | seek every one of
you to extend your co-operation to me in maintaining
transparency, good controls, honesty and improve this
great movement further this year too.

Also, | need to express my sincere gratitude and
appreciation to all my colleagues in the Committee of
the Council for all the assistance extended to me and
Chief Commissioner and his team for their dedicated
service to carry out this great movement further.



The year began on a positive note with the pandemic
getting under control and institutions which were
closed, opening gradually. A calendar packed with
events and activities was prepared for all sections
of the Sri Lanka Scout Association to be in active
service and participation.

We identified the main areas we have to focus on
during the year as:-

a) Membership Growth

b) Financial Discipline

¢) Quality of Scouting

d) Transparency & Visibility

e) Strengthening District Branches

Membership Growth

As per the Strategic Plan of SLSA and WOSM, we
have to reach a membership target of 108,000 by year
2023 and we have been working towards achieving
this. Our membership in 2021 was 52,266 and we
have been able to reach a membership of 93,639 for
2022, The growth has been seen in all 4 sections of the
movement. However, we have not seen a significant
growth in the Senior Scout section.

Conferences for ADCs of Districts in charge of
each subject was held separately organized by the
Commissioners of NHQ and Department Heads
during the year with emphasis on the required growth
targets and that, we believe, is the success and the
co-operation received from DCs and ADCs.

Financial Discipline

Having gone through few years of expenses over
income (deficit) on a high note, we decided to
introduce strict financial controls. A part time Internal
Auditor’s services were engaged and a Finance
Committee comprising Accounting Professionals
was formed. We introduced Travel Re-imbursement
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policy for all projects and events, continued the
conference daily expenses per person formula,
collected the Management fee from the Developer
without much delay and followed the procedure of
obtaining a minimum of 3 quotations for all purchases.
We had to be even more cautious during the year on
the management of our finances as our income from
the Service and Relationship Week was reduced by
half to only 10% and also as we conducted 4 large
National Events which involved both the Scouts and
Scout Leaders from the entire country. We practice a
method of finalizing all event accounts within 2 weeks
of the conclusion of the project. The Annual Accounts
which is part of this Report will show the results we
have achieved.

The Scout Shop which recorded losses in the past few
years had to be made into an profit making entity whilst
rendering a service to the scouts. Several stringent
methods had to be introduced on the purchases, credit
been given to customers and the maintaining of the
stock. We appointed a senior staff member to manage
and run the shop under the supervision of a HQC &
Internal Auditor and all these changes have proved to
be successful and the Scout Shop has recorded a profit
of almost 3 million during the year.

Quiality of Scouting

We noticed that the quality and standard of majority of
Scouts had dropped as a result of not having physical
Scouting, camps and district rallies. The National
Training Department under the 2 NTS’s took steps to
introduce new methods of training and improve the
quality of leader’s training. The National Programme
Department under the NPC took steps to expeditiously
introduce and implement the New Scout Programme.
Through both these measures we have seen a marked
improvement in the standard but, more work needs to
be done in several districts.



NEVER MEASURE THE HEIGHT OF A
MOUNTAIN UNTIL YOU REACH THE TOP.
THEN YOU WILL SEE HOW LOW IT WAS
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The President’s Award interview process was
streamlined and conducted by the ACC in charge at
provincial level, Advanced Courses were held in both
camp-sites at Pedro and Mirigama. The Gold Star
interviews for Cubs are conducted at District level by
the ADC Cubs of the districts.

We introduced an Induction & Orientation Ceremony
for all members of the Committee of the Council and
all members took an Oath of Office as required by
GSAT of WOSM. For the first time in our history an
Open Call was made to recruit Assistant HQCs below
the age of 30 years and we appointed 4 young adults
as AHQCs during the year.

The Safe from Harm Policy (SfH) is fully implemented
and complaints received by the SfH team are
proceeded with. In addition, all genuine complaints
received are also investigated and inquired into by
Boards of Inquiry which are appointed.

The SLSA undertook to be subjected to a Global
Support Assessment Tool (GSAT) audit in order to
ascertain the position of our NSO. Preparation work for
the audit began under 10 team heads co-ordinated by
the DCC. We continued the Annual Appraisal system
for all NHQ Commissioners, DCs and NHQ staff.

Transparency & Visibility

Another important area the SLSA focused our
attention is Transparency. Monthly meetings of the
Senior Management Team (SMT), Headquarters
Commissioners (HQC Meeting) and Committee
of the Council meetings were held monthly. Most
meetings were physical whilst on some occasions we
conducted them on Hybrid basis. Important matters
are discussed, well debated sometimes, then decided
and implemented. All decisions taken at meetings are
recorded in the form of minutes and secured for future
reference. Almost all request for documents held by

the NHQ have been issued to anyone requesting. All
circulars are sent with reference number on most
occasions in all 3 languages.

In order to be transparent and visible, SLSA has
focused much on the social media platforms. We
made an Open Call to recruit young members to the
media which had a very large number applying and
after an interview process a team of around 40 was
formed. Our Web-Site has been updated regularly and
all current affairs of SLSA and scouting are uploaded.
The SLSA is active on Facebook, Instagram and other
social media platforms. A Quarterly E-Newsletter is
been published and circulated widely.

SLSA events and activities both at National level and
district level receive wide publicity in both print and
electric media. However, we are focusing more in the
areas of social media platforms.

Strengthening District Branches

Out of the 37 districts there were 5 districts which
were inactive at the beginning of the year. We were
able to activate all 37 districts and our officials and
I have visited all districts in the country. Moving
forward from the District Office Bearers Conference
held in 2021, we were able to hold Annual General
Meetings of most districts during the year

One main problem of the districts was that the
Assistant District Commissioners, District Scout
Leaders and majority of Scout Leaders not having
their Warrants of Appointment. Both ACC District
Coordination and Administration have been able to
resolve this matter and we have been able to renew
over 90% of the warrants received for 2022. However,
we have received some complaints of the Branch
Association Committees and few ADCs in districts not
cooperating with the DC and obstructing the progress
of the districts. There have also been complaints from



ADCs and senior district leaders against DCs who do
not obtain their services due to personal grievances.
We have requested the Act & Rules Sub-Committee
to look into this matter and introduce Rules in order
to prevent the above taking place in districts.

National Events held during the Year

International Mother Language Day

The International Mother Language Day was
celebrated on 21st February. The event was organized
jointly with the Bangladesh High Commission in
Sri Lanka at the Independence Square. The Chief
Guest was the Hon. Prime Minister. The Annual
Blood Donation Campaign also jointly organized
was held for the 6th Consecutive year at the Sir John
Kothalawala University Hospital in Werahara and
the Chief Guest was the High Commissioner for
Bangladesh in Sri Lanka H.E. Tareq M Ariful Islam
and Madam Islam. This project was sponsored by the
Bangladesh High Commission.

President’s Scouts Parchment Award Ceremony

The Awarding of Parchments to President’s Scouts
which had not taken place for 4 years was held on
23rd February. The main ceremony was held under the
auspices of the Chief Scout H.E. Gotabaya Rajapaksa
at the Presidential Secretariat. For the first time in
the history of any NSO, nine ceremonies were held
simultaneously in the provinces under the Governors
and the main ceremony was connected on zoom to
the 9 provinces and the provincial ceremonies were
connected to the main ceremony. Over 749 were
awarded their certificates.

DC Conference

The  Annual District and  Headquarters’
Commissioners Conference was held on 26th and
27th March 2022 at the Blue Water Hotel, Wadduwa.
Education Ministry Secretary Prof. Kapila Perera
was the Chief Guest. The 2 day programme included
sessions by all sectional heads, training by an external
Resource Person, Awarding of Presidents Award
parchments and a Farewell for immediate past Chief
Commissioner Major General Milinda Peiris.

SL Scouts Care — Distribution of Infant Milk Powder

The SL Scouts Care Project continued under another
Phase. Funding of over USD 3,900 was received from
Malaysia Ceylon Provident Fund Society through an
Assistant Chief Commissioner of Malaysia Scouts to
purchase and distribute Infant Milk Powder to needy
families. This project was conducted in 10 districts
spending the entire sum on Milk Powder without
spending any money for transport or administration

specially during the period there was no Milk Powder
of any kind available in the Country.

SL Scouts Care — Community Kitchen Project

With the shortage of fuel, LP Gas and several food
items, the SLSA was determined to contribute towards
the welfare of the needy families in the districts.
With this intention we introduced the concept of
‘Community Kitchen Project’. Under this project over
110 projects were conducted in 14 districts where
a nutritious meal, soup and bread and other cooked
food was distributed to the needy by the Districts.
The Bangladesh High Commission made a significant
contribution towards this project.

SAANSO Leader Trainer’s Conference

The South Asia National Scout Organization’s Leader
Trainers Conference was held from 15th to 17th
July at Goldi Sands Hotel, Negombo. Several VIP’s
including the Regional Director of APR Mr. JR C
Pangilinan, SAANSO Secretary General Mr. Abdullah
Rasheed, Additional National Chief Commissioner
BSG (India) Mr. Mohamed Ali Khalid, International
Commissioner Dr. Mukhyyuddin Bin Sarwani and
Senior Commissioners of SAANSO NSOs were
present. This Conference was held as a Hybrid event
and was organized by the NTC.

National Scout Awards Ceremony

After a lapse of almost 5 years the National Awards
Ceremony was held on 17th July at Goldi Sands Hotel,
Negombo to recognize Adults who have contributed
towards the development of Scouting in Sri Lanka.
Due to the large number of recipients the ceremony
was held under 3 sessions where the Chief Guests
were the High Commissioner for Bangladesh in
Sri Lanka, The High Commissioner for Malaysia in
Sri Lanka and the Ambassador for the Royal Kingdom
of Thailand in Sri Lanka. Over 700 awardees
received their medals and certificates. The selection
of awardees was done by a committee comprising of
5 Past Silver Lion recipients chaired by the DCC. The
following were awarded the Silver Lion the Highest
Award in Sri Lanka.

1) Mr Janaprith Fernando

2) Mr Ahmad Alhendawi, Secretary General WOSM
3) Mr J.R.C. Pangilinan, Regional Director, APR
4) Mr T Gunaseelan S Thambinathan, ACC Malaysia
5) Mr S A K Kathriarachchi

6) Mr J Gamini Karunaratne

7) Dr M Puvanenthiran
8) Mr Gration Titus Fernando

9) Mr K Bede Nimal Perera
10) Mr Rohan Jude Perera



11) Mr W K Sanath Rohana Wickramasinghe
12) Mr TM Wijeratne

13th National Cubboree

The 13th National Cubboree organized by the ACC
Cubs and her team was held from 16th to 18th
September. This event was held on a different format
where the main event was held at S. Thomas’ College,
Mount Lavinia under the auspices of the Ambassador
for the Republic of Korea, 241 camps at district
and group level were held simultaneously with the
programme been handled from the main camp. Over
12,000 cubs attended this event which had several
sponsors from the corporate sector and the 16th
Colombo Scout Group.

‘Piyawara’ — A Step towards nature. (Plastic
Recycling Project)

The said project initiated under the Messengers of
Peace (MOP) Coordinator was launched 1st October
at the Mount Lavinia Beach by conducting a beach
cleanup and collecting plastic bottles. The plastic
bottles collected by Scouts will be paid for so that the
Scouts could earn some pocket money and the plastic
bottles recycled for the manufacture of yarn for the
producing of Scout scarves. This project is supported
by the Bangladesh High Commission, Aqua Fresh
— Access Natural Water (Pvt) Ltd and ECO Spindle
(Pvt) Ltd.

Investiture Ceremony of the Chief Scout

The Investiture Ceremony of the Chief Scout His
Excellency Ranil Wickramasinghe President of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka was held
on 21.11.2022 at the Presidential Secretariat. The
Chief Scout was invested by placing the Sri Lanka
Scout Scarf after the renewal of the Scout Promise by
all those present. The Chief Commissioner presented
a brief report of the activities carried out and the plan
for the year 2023. H.E. the President in reply sated
that he is fully supportive of Scouting as he is aware
that it is one of the most important youth movements
in the world and requested SLSA not to stop at
reaching 108,000 members by 2023 but to have a
target of 200,000 by 2024 and that the President and
the government specially the Ministries of Education
and Youth Affairs would be directed to give the fullest
support to SLSA. The Senior Commissioners and
key officials of the Council attended this event. Wide
media coverage was received for this ceremony.

First National Kiddoree

The First National Kiddorree was held at the Vihara
Maha Devi Park, Colombo 7 organized by the ACC
Singithi and her team on 26th November. The Chief
Guest was the High Commissioner for Bangladesh in

Sri Lanka. Over 6,000 Singithi Scouts and Leaders
attended the half day programme. Several corporates
sponsored this event and each participant received
items valued at almost Rs.4,000/-. Participants from
all the provinces attended the Kiddorree which was
jointly supported by the Homagama and Colombo
District Branches.

Scouting in New Communities (SNC) Project

On an application submitted by SLSA, the WOSM
MOP approved the said project to re-introduce
Scouting in 10 districts where either scouting had
come to a halt or inactive. The following districts were
selected. Ampara, Point Pedro, Mannar, Monaragala,
Puttalam, Wennappuwa, Polonnaruwa, Chilaw,
Anuradhapura, Nuwaraeliya.

The Project is Managed by a HQC and the APR
has pledged a sum of USD 23,000/- of which 40%
was received and used for stage 1 of the project.
The Project consist of conducting a Conference for
Zonal Education Department Authorities and School
Principals in the 10 districts. The participation of
children in activities organized under the SL Scouts
110th Anniversary Celebrations, Conducting of Phase
1 Leader Training Courses for Singithi and Scout
Section and commencing of new Scout Groups.

SL Scouts 110

The Sri Lanka Scout Association celebrated its 110th
Anniversary in a grand scale throughout all Scout
districts of Sri Lanka on 23rd December. All districts
organized a walk/parade with posters carrying
messages under the ‘Better World Framework’,
Poster Competitions, Rallies, Model Camps and
Grand Camp-Fire in the main cities. Over 35,000
Scouts participated in activities throughout the nation,
Every event was attended by a Commissioner from
the National Headquarters. All Scouts who actively
participated in the event were entitled to wear the SL
110 badge on their uniform.

Cub Scouting for Everyone

This project under the leadership of ACC Cubs to
increase the number of Cub Scouts by 33% funded by
the WOSM APR MOP was an overwhelming success
where the target expected was 29,630 but topped
35,814 cubs.

Service and Relationship Month 2022

The Service and Relationship Month 2022 was held
during the period of 1st to 31st of August. As in the
previous year on the request of the DCs the Scouts
were issued Job Cards on an individual basis, through
their districts to the Scout Groups. As decided the
NHQ allocation was only 10% of the income, 30%



A SCOUT IS NEVER TAKEN BY SURPRISE;
HE KNOWS EXACTLY WHAT TO DO WHEN
ANYTHING UNEXPECTED HAPPENS
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to the districts and 60% to the Scout/Scout Group.
This project is well received by both the Scouting
community and the general public of Sri Lanka,
specially in districts where it is properly planned and
implemented. The total collection from the country
exceeded Rs. 33 million and the highest collection
of over Rs. 5 million was from Homagama District
Branch of SLSA.

Chitral Amaratunga Memorial Committee Room

We received a donation of office furniture, computers
and other equipment valued at over Rs. 4 million
from Mrs. Pushpa Amaratunga AAL the wife of late
Mr. Chitral Amaratunga AAL and former President
of SL Scout Council, in memory of Mr. Amaratunga.
All items of furniture and equipment have been
inventoried and been used at the NHQ Office. We
decided to name the Scout Council room in Memory
of Mr Chitral Amaratunga and it has been named
after him. We are very thankful to Mrs. Amaratinga
for this donation.

All Department Heads have submitted Reports of
the Activities, Projects and Progress made by their
respective departments which will give an overview
of the successful activities carried out by SLSA
during the year under review.

The implementation of the Strategic Plan was
been carried out by DCC. The monitoring is been
done periodically. The Singithi section and Girls
in Scouting sections headed by ACC Singithi and
HQC are also experiencing a growth due to several
projects and workshops been conducted. The Rover
section has seen a large growth and we expect further
growth. The new Youth Programme we are convinced
will strengthen and grow the Scout section and the
retention of Scouts.

I thank the two Chief Scouts Their Excellencies the
Presidents of the Democratic Socialist Republic of
Sri Lanka and the officials at the Presidential
Secretariat, The Secretary and officials of the Ministry
of Education for the cooperation extended to us. |
thank all the District Commissioners for their unity
and unstinted support extended to me during this
period and thank the DCC, all my brother and sister
Senior & all NHQ Commissioners, the President of
the Scout Council, The Chairman of the Committee
of the Council, The Hony. Secretary, Hony. Treasurer
& members of the Committee of the Council, the
Chairmen & members of Sub-Committees, the
Executive Secretary and the staff of SLSA for the
co-operation extended to me in carrying out my duties
during the period.

Thank you and Happy Scouting.

- Janaprith Fernando Attorney-at-Law
Chief Commissioner



HONY SECRETARY

The Sri Lanka Scout Council is empowered to
administrate the Sri Lanka Scout Association by a
Parliamentary ACT adopted by No 13 of 1957.

A committee of the council is elected for this purpose
by the Sri Lanka Scout Council members at a
special General meeting and approved at the Annual
General Meeting.

The Committee of the Council meet usually on every
3rd Wednesday of each month to discuss and approve
all administrative and logistics issues.

According to SLSC Act & Rules, it is mandatary to
have 2 Special General Meetings. Accordingly, we
have had 2 SGMs for session 2022/2023. We had
our first SGM in December 2022, primarily to adopt
SLSADbudget for 2023 and the 2nd SGM in April 2023
to elect SLSC Committee of the Council members for
session 2023/2024.

We have had 11 Committee of the Council meetings
for session 2022/2023 with excellent attendance
and as Secretary, on behalf of the Council, I
express my gratitude for all members for their
enthusiasm, valuable time and effort in attending our
regular meetings.

For the first time, our 1st Committee of the Council
meeting was held with an Orientation and Induction
Ceremony to motivate all elected and appointed
members for the new session.

All members were able to update and refresh their
knowledge of WOSM, APR, History of Ceylon Scout
Council and the Council Act and Rules.

Investiture ceremony of Chief Scout, His Excellency
the President Ranil Wickremesinghe was held at
Presidential Secretariat in November 2022. His
Excellency emphasized the importance to increase
the number of Scouts in Sri Lanka to 200,000 and his
assurance to extend his and his Government’s support
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to achieve the target, motivated Chief Commissioner
and other Scout Officials to work new strategies for
this new task.

On behalf of the Committee of the Council, our
appreciation and sincere thanks to Committee
members who have completed their tenure for session
2022/2023 and we welcome new members who were
elected to serve 2023/2024 session to join hands with
us to make their contribution to further strengthen
administrative structure of SLSA.

Ms Wathsala Wijewickrana completed her tenure
as ACC after serving for a period of 6 years and
her dedicated service is very well appreciated and
remembered by all at NHQ. As one of the Senior
Commissioners who served SLSA in many capacities
for a long period, we wish her all success in all her
future endeavours.

Mr Sampath Kariyawasam has completed 3 years with
the committee of the Council as Hony Treasurer and
have fulfilled all his responsibilities to the complete
satisfaction of the Committee, Chief Commissioner
and other Commissioners. We extend our appreciation
and gratitude for his dedication and valuable time in
discharging his responsibilities.

The demise of Mr Suminda Withanaarachchi, former
Secretary of Council in October 2022 while serving
as Vice President of the Council was a very sad
episode we all experienced due to his young age and
unexpected tragic death after a short illness. May he
attain supreme bliss of Nibbana!.



I was appointed as Deputy Chief Commissioner
with effective from 1st February 2022 and assumed
duties officially on 5th March 2022. I am thankful to
Chief Commissioner Attorney at Law Mr. Janaprith
Fernando for having selected me as his Deputy and
hope to carry out my duties to the best of my abilities.

Strategic Plan 2021 — 2023

The Strategic Plan prepared in 2021 for 3 years during
the period of former Chief Commissioner Major
General Milinda Peiris to reach the membership
target of 108,500 by end of 2023 had to face
obstacles in 2021 due to the Covid 19 Pandemic and
periodical closure of schools of not being able to get
correct census figures. In 2022 and we were able to
reach a membership of 93,639 progressing from the
figure of 64,807 in 2020. We are hopeful to reach
another 14,861 by end of 2023 to reach the Strategic
Plan target.

WOSM - Assessment — GSAT Audit

SLSA was requested to undertake the Audit under 10
dimensions and | was appointed as Coordinator by
Chief Commissioner.

Ten teams were appointed and prepared for it from
October 2022 onwards after meetings with facilitator
and APR officials. All details were uploaded with
evidence till December 2022 to face the physical
audit in January 2023. Once the Audit is successful,
we will get the certification which will enhance the
credibility of our Association.

| wish to thank all Team Leaders and members of
their teams for the hard work done. My special
thanks to AVM Andrew Wijesuriya, Headquarters
Commissioner and Mr Sashika Munasinghe,
Assistant Headquarters Commissioner the uploading
of evidence and the follow up.
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‘Nutrivention’ Project of UNICEF

This project initiated by UNICEF is a joint project
with Sarvodaya and SLSA. The main objective being
to improve the nutrition level of the communities
through the scout groups. Initial training of the Scout
Leaders is in progress via zoom who will train the
scouts for the implementation. The project period
is 6 months. Dr. Rajeev Pagoda, Headquarters
Commissioner is coordinating the project.

United Nations Volunteers (UNV)

We are continuing to participate in activities organized
by the UNV. Dr. Asanka Eriyawa, HQC and | attend
meetings representing SLSA. We are also members
of the Steering Committee for the V Net project
connecting all volunteer organisations.

Tamil Translations

All circulars are translated and sent in Tamil Language
translated by our Tamil translator at NHQ office. All
publications of all departments are translated by the
translator and overall checked by me. | must thank
Mr. Ajith Kumar HQC, Mr. S. Amalaraj AHQC
and Mr. Saseetharan ADC Matale for checking the
corrections in publications

Other Duties

Apart from the above | am also carrying out duties
entrusted to me from time to time by the Chief
Commissioner.



We give below the activities conducted by the
National Training Division during the year 2022 for
your information.

Setting up of National Training Website

National Training Division website is now well
in operation we requested officials updating the
National Site of the Scout Association to copy all
information of this site to the National Website. The
thinking behind this site was to activate the usage
of Information Technology to blend with Scouting,
so that it ideally suits conditions arising after the
pandemic and into the future. We earnestly believe
that this move contributed to the promotion of online
activities in a big way.

Strengthening the National Training Division
Administration

Four Secretaries (one for each section), support the
National Training Commissioner with Director of
the National Training Division. We believe that
this exercise too contributed to the efficiency of
administration.

National Training Adult Leader Programs

National Training adult new programs are in practice
island wide. English and Tamil translations are in
progress and we hope to complete it with in a very
short period of time

Pedro Camp, Nuwaraeliya

Pedro camp is now in operation and regular camping
and Training Courses organized by National and
District levels are being held on regular basis.
Residential warden and an Assistant are full time
based at the camp.

Previously, we had to transport camping items from
Mirigama Training Center to Pedro specially when
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we organize Phase IV advance courses. This is a
costly exercise for transportation.

My sincere thanks to the Chief Commissioner, Deputy
Chief Commissioner, Hon. Chairman and Hon.
Treasurer for releasing funds to buy new camping
items for Pedro Training center and now the Pedro is
fully equipped with its own camping gears. Updating
of the camp inventory with new items are already
been completed.

Mirigama National Training Centre

Residential warden and an Assistant are full time
based at the camp.

The branches of trees which were overgrown were cut
after a very long time to reduce the risk of branches
falling and damaging buildings.

Camp items such as Mattress, Pillows, Linen and Iron
beds were replaced with all new items. The previous
items were in very bad and unusable condition.

Again, my sincere thanks to the Chief Commissioner,
Deputy Chief Commissioner, Hon. Chairman and Hon.
Treasurer for releasing funds to buy these camping
items for Mirigama Training center. Updating of
the camp inventory with new items are already been
completed.

Need to do major repairs for roofs of all cabins at
the training center and | already informed the Chief
Commissioner and the Committee of the Council
to allocate required funds for this repair. This is an
urgent matter to take necessary actions.

Online Communication Platforms

Training division’s several online communication
platforms through Whatsapp groups which ultimately
led to setting up of a Whatsapp group of all Leader
Trainers and Assistant Leader Trainers up to
approximately 125 members and Phase IV staff teams



SUCCESS IN TRAINING THE BOY DEPENDS
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and participants are very interactive communication
leading to coordination of many of the National
Training team members who were uncontactable. It
has also led to help fast and effective communication
among the National Training Team.

Training activities during the year:

Training Team Seminar

National Training Team Seminar was held on
19.02.2022 at Sampath Bank Head Office, Colombo.
Gilwell Reunion

Gilwell Reunion was held in Matara from 18th to 19th
July 202 with the participation of 100 Gilwellions.
Assistant District Commissioners (Training) Seminar

ADC (Training) Seminar was held on 30.07.2022 at
the National Headquarters with the participation of
30 Districts.

Phase 1 Courses

District wise we have had 110 phase 1 courses and
trained 3122 new leaders. (All 04 sections).

Phase Il Courses

District wise we have had 16 phase Il courses and
trained 270 leaders. (All 04 sections).

Phase 1V Advanced Courses

a) 146th Scout phase 1V advanced course held
in Mirigama with 49 participants (08th to 14th
September 2022).

b) 86th Cub Scout phase IV training course held
in Mirigama with 32 participants. (24th to 28th
September 2022).

SAANSO Training

SAANSO (South Asian Association of Scout
Organizations) trainers conference (Hybrid) was held
from 14th to 17th July 2022 including trainers and
participants both local and overseas.

Course of Assistant Leader Trainers

Interviews were held and 46 participants selected
to follow the CALT (Course for Assistant Leader
Trainers), which is scheduled to be held in June 2023.

Finally, 1 wish to thank the Chief Commissioner,
all staff at Headquarters, members of the National
Training Team, all other Leaders and Commissioners
and well-wishers for supporting the activities of
National Training Division.

We will continue to serve with dedication and
commitment in reaching the objectives of Adult
Leader Training.

Yours in Scout Service,

Gamini Somathilake
National Training Commissioner



Implementation of New Youth Programme

The New Youth Programme has been successfully
implemented all over the country. New Progressive
Badges and New Progress Record Books are been
prepared to sell at the Scout Shop.

The New Proficiency Badge Syllabus for the Scout
Section has been introduced and published through
the SLSA Web Site.

Patrol Leader’s Training Programme

Most of the Scout Districts conducted the Patrol
Leader’s Training Camps successfully at District level.

Leadership Training Courses for Senior Scouts

According to the New Youth Programme in Scout
Section, the National Programme Team has been able
to conduct three Leadership Training Courses via
Virtual Platform in Hybrid system. The Department
trained more than 700 Senior Scoults.

National Programme Committee and Programme
Team Meetings

Conducted Three National Programme Committee
Meetings and Two Progeamme Team Workshops in
the year 2022.

New Scout Hand Books

Cub Scout Section has been published four Cub Scouts
Activity Books and Scout Section has published Two
Hand Books in all three languages.

Better World Framework Badges

The Better World Framework Team has organized a
Webinar Series to train Badge Examiners for all Scout
districts in two stages and started the implementation
of training and passing badges.

PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

Mr Sarath Mataraarchchi
NATIONAL PROGRAMME COMMISSIONER

Scout Uniform Guide Book

The Scout Uniform Guide Book has been published in
the SLSA Web site and started implementation from
1st January 2023 in all scout districts.

Guide Book in Development of Scouting in Schools
This has been completed and handed over to the
Western Province Department of Education.

GSAT Assessment in 2023

All necessary documents are been prepared to submit
to the GSAT Audit in a proper manner.

Prime Minister’s Scout Award Winners 2022

All arrangements are been made to present 250 Prime
Minister’s Scout Award Badges

For the first set of winners at the BP Day Ceremony
which will be held in Matale District on 22nd February
2023.

Sarath Mataraarachchi
National Programme Commissioner



MEMBERS OF THE
INTERNATIONAL DIVISION IN 2022

Our team consisted of;

Dr Rajeeva Pieris (International Commissioner)
Mr Anton Seth Perera (Special Commissioner)
Mr Abdul Mawahib (Headquarter Commissioner)
Dr Asanka Eriyawa (Headquarter Commissioner)
Mr Udesha Maduranga Medagama (AHC)

Mr Chamara Kaldera (AHC)

EVENTS IN 2022

APR Course for Leader Trainers (4-6, 8-10, 12-13
February) Virtual

This is the first Course for Leaders Trainers that was
ever held virtually. 57 participants from 18 National
Scouts Organizations attended, with 25 seasoned
trainers from Australia, Hong Kong, Japan, Malaysia,
Pakistan, Philippines & Singapore as Instructors on
the course.

It was a high standard course and the participants
introduced to course material and to a wide variety of
online tools for use with virtual platform.

The 10th APR Scout Youth Forum (9-10 &12-13
February) Virtual

2 Delegates and 8 Observers were selected by the
International team’s interview system. A S Withanage,

INTERNATIONAL DEPARTMENT REPORT

Dr Rajeeva Pieris
INTERNATIONAL COMMISSIONER

G Rajapaksha, N Rathnayaka, S Neththipola, S H
Perera, N Kularathna, M D de Silva, P Abeysinghe,
N Krishnaram and S Dulangi represented Sri Lanka.
Dr Eriyawa did great justice as the chief organizer of
this event.

27th Asia—Pacific Regional Scout Conference (15-
21 February) Virtual

The 27th Asia-Pacific
Regional Scout Conference
brought together delegations
from 30 National Scout
Organizations in the Asia-
Pacific Region to build
resilience and to contribute
in shaping the future of over
35 million Scouts across the
Region.

SLSA nominated a 20

member team to participate

for the 27th Asia Pacific

Conference. Mr. Lakshan
Perera coordinated the contingent with CC.

International Friendship Hub (Web Portal) New
App development

a Global Friendship App was developed from ground
zero, free of charge, by Mr Dinusha Kulasooriya.
A server with 40 GB disk space, 2TB Bandwidth



THE UNIFORM MAKES FOR BROTHERHOOD,
SINCE WHEN UNIVERSALLY ADOPTED,
IT COVERS UP ALL DIFFERENCES OF
CLASS AND COUNTRY,

SIR ROBERT BADEN-POWELL

and 2GB RAM was hired from Kandian Host on a
sponsorship kindly offered by Mr Piyasiri annangara,
Chairman Trico Maritime (Pvt) Ltd, 414-17K. Cyril
C. Perera Mawatha, Colombo -13.

IC appointed as a member of the WOSM Safe
from Harm in World/Regional Events project
(21st February)

Dr Rajeeva Pieris, International Commissioner and
Chairman, SLSA National Committee for Safe from
Harm, was appointed by the World Scout Committee
into the 8 member International, Team Purple, WOSM
writing committee on Safe from Harm for World
Scout events and Regional Scout Events.

WOSM 2021-2024 Triennial
Celebration (27 February) Virtual

Webinar on how to score high marks at International
Interviews (16th March)

This Webinar was exclusively planned to make sure
that Scouts would perform optimally at the World
Scout Jamboree selection interviews. Large number
of Scouts attended with their parents. It was a very
successful Webinar. Dr Eriyawa, Mr. Udesha & Mr.
Chamara organized the event.

Plan Kick-off

25th World Scout Jamboree Interviews
(19th March)

Took place at NHQ on
19/3/2022. This was the first
time the physical format of
the new interview system
was used. The interviews
were carried out at 7 stations
of which 5 stations had blind
marking. The 2 stations for
smartness and good order

and interview etiquette assessment were face to
face interviews. The interview panel consisted of
all members of the International Division (6) and 12
commissioners (DCC, ACC, HQCs, AHQCs, DCs,
ADCs) and Guild members. Dr Eriyawa and Mr.
Udesha and Mr. Mawahib organized the event.

Asia-Pacific Regional Youth
Leadership Training Course
2022 (19-23 July) Thailand.

The event was held in Vajiravudh

National Camp in Sriracha about

90km away from Bangkok.

Mr Udesha coordinated in
exemplary fashon.

Bon Voyage Ceremony (17th July)

The Bon voyage Ceremony was held at the Goldi
Sands Hotel, Negombo. The Chief Commissioner
gave a good account of how an exemplary Scout
ambassador of Sri Lanka should conduct themselves.
Thereafter an oath of good conduct was taken by the
candidates. The cost of the ceremony was borne by
the International staff. Mr. Udesha organized; Mr.
Abdul compered.



1st World Scout Jamboree Contingent Meeting
(22nd August 2022)

This was a crowded meeting held in NQH for both
Participants and their Parents — While the Participants
and commissioners were in the auditorium, the parents
had a live feed downstairs, at the car park.

The National Cubboree 2022 (16th-18th September)

The International Division was responsible for
arranging Airport reception (15/9), all internal
transport, hotel stay, all food and drink, City tour of
Colombo and a visit to the Zoo. The Commissioner
with overall responsibility was Mr. Anton Seth
Perera who performed a great job. Daily, there was
a duty commissioner who was physically on site
accompanying the cubs and the entire International
Division took turns. Rovers did service duty every
day and their contribution was tremendous.

2nd World Scout Jamboree Contingent Meeting
(25th September) Virtual

The highlights of this meeting were CC addressing
the Contingent, Resource videos, composition of the
final Contingent— CMT / IST / UL, Patrol Division,
Sub division of groups, Update on Air Travel, Future
Meetings / Bulletins.

JOTAJOTI 2020 (14th to 16th October)

The JOTA JOTI was
organized in Sri Lanka by the
International Division. The

National Organisers were Mr.
Udesha Medagama and Mr.
Chamara Kaldera who did a
great job.

For JOTA, both the Radio Society of Sri Lanka and
the Amateur Radio Association of Lanka joined SLSA
to man 12 stations across the country. The highlight of
the day is when the Radio Hams demonstrated how
photos can be transmitted via sound waves.

JOTI was mainly organized as an individual exercise.
According to WOSM 6105 Sri Lankans participated.
Although the raw numbers are higher than last year,
we are No 14 in the world ranking this year. (Sri
Lanka was No 4 last year).

Bon Voyage ceremony for Sri Lanka Contingent to
the 18th National Scout & Guide Jamboree (28th
December)

Bon Voyage Ceremony for the outgoing contingent
for the 18th Indian National Jamboree was held at
National Scout Headquarters of Sri Lanka Scout
Headquarters. It was a historic occasion as the Girl
Guide contingent was having a joint meeting with
us. Sri Lankan contingent consists of 7 Scouts and 1
Adult leader.

Mr Janaprith Fernando Chief Commissioner of the
Sri Lanka Scout Association, Dr Rajeeva Pieris,
International Commissioner of SLSA together with
Ms Nirmali Williams Assistant Chief Commissioner
of SLGGAand Ms Nadeeka Gunasekara International
Commissioner SLGGA also joined the occasion.

International Scout Activity Showcase

The International
Division has aired
5 episodes of this

recurring program
in 2022, It consists
of  Songs,  skits,

demonstrations
and exhibition of

talent from Scouts
all over Sri Lanka.
Motivational Videos,

Information about Scout events & country profiles
are also broadcast. It is broadcast on Facebook live
on https://www.facebook.com/International-Scout-
Activity-Showcase-SLSA-107445494544037. Scouts
can contribute by sending their videos to international.
scout.showcase@gmail.com



(Administration)

District Commissioners’ Conference

The District Commissioners’ Conference 2022 was
held as a residential event on 26th and 27th March
2022 at Blue Water Hotel, Wadduwa, under the theme
of “‘SL Scouts 110°.

Team building exercises and group discussions were
held on the first day of the conference. The Secretary
to the Ministry of Education, Professor Kapila Perera
graced the conference as the Chief Guest on the second
day. Farewell to the former Chief Commissioner
Major General Milinda Peiris was also held on that
day. The Commander of the St. John Ambulance
Association and Brigade in Sri Lanka, Mr. Prasantha
Lal De Alwis PC conducted a session.

34 districts participated in the conference.

District Commissioners’ Meetings

In addition to the District Commissioners’
Conference, three DCs’ Meetings were held on
20.02.2022, 26.06.2022 and 07.11.2022 on virtual
platform.  District Commissioners  presented
district performances and discuss their issues and
concerns. The Chief Commissioner and the Senior
Commissioners at National Headquarters attended
these virtual meetings.

Staff Training and Trip

The staff training and the trip was held on 2nd and 3rd
April 2022.

Training sessions, team building exercises and
assignments were done by the National Training
Commissioner Mr. Nanda Fernando and Special
Commissioner Mr. Kapila Kumara, at the Pedro
Training Centre — Nuwaraeliya.

ADMINISTRATION SECTION REPORT

Dr Manjula Sahabandu
ASSISTANT CHIEF COMMISSIONER

NEW APPOINTMENTS
National Headquarters

Deputy Chief Commissioner
Mr M F S Muheed

National Training Commissioner
Mr K Gamini Somathilake

Assistant Chief Commissioner
Mr G R Ruwan Krishantha Ariyarathna

Special Commissioner
Mr M Kapila Upul Kumara

Headquarters Commissioners
Mr Pushpakumara Mahagammullage

Mr S A Jerome Lakshan Perera

Mr N K Saminda Jayasekara

Dr Rajeev Pagoda

Mr P Sanjaya Perera

Air Vice Marshal (Rtd.) AW E Wijesuriya

Assistant Headquarters Commissioners
Mrs Thamara Rohini Wijayarathne

Mr. W.S.K.K. Nuwan Darshana

Mr Dinusha Devendra Kulasooriya

Ms Gimhani Anjana Rajapaksha

Mr D S Anushan Munasinghe

Mr S Amalaraj

Mr M K Wasantha Udaya Kumara

Mr P Sashikumar
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SIR ROBERT BADEN-POWELL

District Commissioners

Seven new District Commissioners were appointed
in 2022.

Ampara - MrY M C Yapa Bandara
Homagama - Mrs K A Chandrapathma
Kegalle - Mr W G Prasad Bandara Walpola
Nawalapitiya - Mr M M Kapila Priyakara
Negombo - MrRW M R O Rodrigo
Polonnaruwa - Mr R R PW'Y Thilanka Ranaweera
Vavuniya - Mr G Kamalakumar

Warrants

1350 warrants were renewed in the year 2022. 37 new
District leaders warrants, 63 new Assistant District
Commissioners warrants and 522 new group leaders
warrants were issued.

I wish to express my sincere thanks to the Chief
Commissioner and Commissioners at National
Headquarters, members of the Committee of the
Council, District Commissioners, Assistant District
commissioners, leaders and district officials and
the staff of Sri Lank Scout Association for their
tremendous support extended.



(Cubs)

The year 2022 can be recognized as a historically
significant one for the Cub Scout movement of the
Sri Lanka Scout Association. A year which brought
on a new set of challenges for Cub Scouts and Cub
Leaders due to the continuing pandemic, political
unrest and adverse economic conditions. However,
2022 saw the Cub Scout movement, come out on top,
once again, with the successful rolling out of the Cub
Scouting for Everyone (MoP); and the 13th National
Cubboree taking centre stage in September 2022.

Cub Scouting for Everyone Programme (MoP
Project): Stage 3

The Cub Scouting for Everyone programme, a project
under the patronage of the Asia pacific Region (MoP
Project), picked up momentum in 2022. The aim of
this project was to have a growth of 33% of Cub
Scouts compared to the project’s commencement
in the year 2020. The line-up of activities towards
meeting this target is as follows:

1. Updating the Cub Scout programme and
Proficiency Badge Syllabus.

2. Distribution of four activity books (Membership,
Bronze Star, Silver Star and Gold Star).

3. Conducting Phase 1 Introductory Training
Courses (Fifty Phase 1 introductory courses to
train new Cub Leaders were conducted.)

4. Provincial workshops for Cub Scout leaders in
collaboration with the Ministry of Education:

CUB SCOUT SECTION REPORT

Mrs Wathsala Wijewickrama
ASSISTANT CHIEF COMMISSIONER

Given below are the details of the outcome of training
courses held through the CSE (MoP) project to uplift
Cub Scouting especially in inactive Districts:

5. Uniform distribution for Cub Scouts from low-
income families: Uniforms were provided under
this project to more than 1100 under-privileged
students who joined the Cub Scout movement
from rural areas of the country. In keeping with
our diversity and inclusion programme, uniforms
were also distributed to over 75 differently abled
Cub Scouts in the Kurunegala District.

Despite the set-back experienced during the year 2021,
owing to the COVID-19 pandemic and the economic
rescission faced by the country, project activities
leapfrogged in 2022, surpassing the project target of
29,630 Cub Scouts (33% increase of the population
of Cub Scouts that existed in January 2021). We
ended up by achieving a record-breaking population



of registered Cub Scout in the country (35,766
according to the SLSA census), by March 2023. In
addition to the above, there are an over 8,000 new
Cub Scouts from different parts of the country, who
have commenced their journey of Cub Scouting but
are yet to be registered. This brings the total number
of Cub Scouts close to 44,000 in the island.

Accordingly, | am pleased to place on record that the
Cub Scouting for Everyone Project was completed on
a high note and was a resounding success.

13th National Cubboree: 16th to 18th Sep 2022

The 13th National Cubboree was successfully held
from the 16th to the 18th of September 2022 under
the theme, “Change for Success”. The national event
was hosted by S. Thomas’ College, Mount Lavinia
and conducted simultaneously across the island;
during one of the most challenging periods in Sri
Lanka’s Cub Scouting history. Participation at the
13th National Cubboree exceeded all expectations as
12,573 Cub Scouts and 707 Leaders participated in
this event representing 266 schools from 26 Districts.
Additionally, a delegation from the Maldives,
including 25 Cub Scouts and 10 Cub Scout Leaders
along with the International Commissioner of the
Maldives, joined the Cubboree. The Chief Guest at the
main venue was the Korean Ambassador, Santhush
Woonjin Jeong.

All programmes at District level were extremely
successful and were ably led by the District
Commissioners. Following the training we provided,
the Assistant District Commissioners (Cubs) and
Cub Scout Leaders took a lead role in conducting
the programme in their locations. The Cubboree
gave our Cub Scout Leaders valuable leadership
experiences, through having to organize and conduct
the various Cubboree sessions.For the Cub Scouts
who participated in this event, the benefits were
immeasurable. This was the first physical camp this
group of Cub Scouts had after the pandemic: and as
such they were able to enjoy experiences they had
never known before. Cub Scout Leaders unanimously
reported that these Cub Scouts displayed growth in

independence through the activities planned; as well
as through taking care of themselves, each other and
their belonging during those three days. My sincere
thanks go out to each and every one who played a part
in making this event a successful one for our nation’s
Cub Scouts.

District Activities

I must appreciate the hard work of many Assistant
District Commissioners (Cub Scouts), District
Cub Leaders and the Cub Scout leaders who were
instrumental in organizing many activities for the
Cub Scouts and were instrumental in increasing the
number of Cub Scouts through their dedicated service.

| take this opportunity to extend my deep gratitude
to the National Executive Committee, the Chief
Commissioner, Deputy Chief Commissioner, National
Training Commissioner, National Programme
Commissioner and all Senior Commissioners for the
input, guidance and advice. My sincere thanks to all
Headquarters Commissioners, District Commissioners
and Assistant District Commissioners (Cub Scouts),
District Cub Leaders, Cub Scout Leaders and to the
office staff for the support extended, to make all Cub
Scout activities successful during the challenging but
ultimately rewarding year of 2022.

As | relinquish my duties as ACC (Cubs) by 31
December 2022, | wish to thank the former Chief
Commissioner Prof. Nimal Silva who appointed me
in 2016; former Chief Commissioners, Mr. Merille
Goonatilake, and Major. General Milinda Peiris; and
former members of the Senior Management Team;
the committee of the Council and Executive Secretary
and Staff SLSA; for all the support rendered during
my tenure as ACC (Cubs). A very big thank you and
appreciation goes to my team who worked with me
untiringly throughout all my projects.

I wish my successor all the very best with the
rewarding role of nurturing and developing the Cub
Scouts of Sri Lanka.



(Rovers & IT)

The year 2022 was a very successful year for the
Rovers across the country. To begin with, 1 would like
to thank the Rover Scouts and Leaders, in gratitude of
you, for serving the community by various community
projects, for upholding the fundamentals of Scouting,
and for your support and training.

ROVER MEMBERSHIP

Rover Membership has been increased from 1,103 to
1,509 in 2022 against 2021, which is an increase of
37%. However, the census of some of the National
Rover Crews (approx.800 members) were not
included above.

Census Date 2020 2021 2022

Rovers & Leaders (M) 654 967 1145
Rovers & Leaders (F) 130 136 364

TOTAL 784 1103 1509
YoY % Increase 41% 37%

PRESIDENT SCOUTS’ PARCHMENT
CEREMONY -2019-2021

749 President Scouts (2019-2021) received their
Parchments at scattered ceremonies (due to
COVID-19) on 23rd Feb 2022. The main function
was held at the Presidential Secretariat, under the
patronage of H.E. the President, and at Provincial
Level functions were graced by the Provincial
Governors and/or their representatives.

Since then, further 227 Scouts have been interviewed
in 12 locations, and became eligible for the President
Scout Award.

BP AWARDEES

24 Rover Scouts have won the most prestigious
‘BP Award’, which is the highest for a Rover Scout,
in 2022.

ROVERS & IT SECTION REPORT

Mr Srilath de Silva
ASSISTANT CHIEF COMMISSIONER

FORMATION OF NEW ROVER CREWS

More than 500 Under-graduates from 9 faculties of
the University of Ruhuna formulated the 2nd National
Rover Crew on 8-Nov-2022.

Also, initial discussions were held with the authorities
of the Sripalee Campus, Horana, of the University of
Colombo, to formulate a Rover Crew in the campus.

The First Air Rover Crew in Matara District was
formed on 22nd Aug.

The First Sea Rover Crew in Kaluthara District was
formed at CWW Kannangara CC, Matugama on
11-March.

ROVER ADULT LEADER TRAINING &
WORKSHOPS

Rover ADC & DRSL Workshop was held on 5th
March at Mirigama

Phase-II Rover Course for 32 Prison Officers was
held from Jan 28-30 at Mirigama. Another Phase-II
Rover Course was held from Feb 11-13 at John Paul-
Il Centre, Ja Ela.

Phase-1 Rover Course was held on 6th March at
Agramathya MV, Homagama, whereras Rover
Phase-1 Rover Course was held from Aug 5-6 at
Pallekele, Kandy.

ROVER TRAINING CAMPS

Rover Inmates Training Camp for Prison Rovers was
held in April at Pallekele Rehabilitation Centre.

‘Leadership in Action’ Training Programme, and a
Workshop on Rover Proficiency Stars, organized by
Colombo Rovers, was held on 8th Oct, at Kithulgala.

Activity Camp for Rovers, organized by Kandy Rego
Rovers, was held on 22nd Sep.



THE SPIRIT IS THERE IN EVERY BOY;
[T HAS TO BE DISCOVERED AND
BROUGHT TO LIGHT.

SIR ROBERT BADEN-POWELL

‘Adventure - the Annual Exploration Competition’
by Rego Rovers Kandy in collaboration with Nature
Club of Viharamahadevi GS, Kandy was held in
Hantana Mountain Range on 22nd Oct.

COMMUNITY SERVICE PROJECTS

Blood Donation Campaigns: 1st National Rover
Crew of Kotelawala Defence University, Ratmalana,
organised a Blood Donation Project on 21-Feb 2022.
Rover Inmates in Jaffna Prison also organized a Blood
Donation & Tree Planting Campaign on 1-Oct.

Tree Planting Campaigns: Tree Planting Project
to commemorate the 74th Independence Day was
organized by Kaluthara Sea Rovers, and was held on 4th
Feb 2022. On 14-June, Rego Rovers, Kandy, organized
the “Each one, Plant one’ Tree Planting Campaign.

Beach Clean up: Nurdle Cleanup to commemorate
the International Coastal Cleanup Day was organized
by Josephian Rovers on 17th Sep. in collaboration with
Pearl Protectors. More Beaches Clean up, supported
by Rovers, held in Wattala-Ja Ela District (On 15th
Sep) and Kaluthara Sea Rovers (On 1st Dec). On 29th
Dec, Rovers took part in Beach cleaning under the
programme titled ‘Piyawara, A Step Towards Nature’,
organized by the MOP SLSA.

Community Kitchen Programme: Rovers joined
the Community Kitchen Programme by SL Scout
Care Project on 16th July.

Prevention of Drugs: Drug Prevention Sticker
Campaign was organized by Highland Rovers, Kandy,
in collaboration with YAN Sri Lanka Youth Network
(Aug-13), and a workshop ‘Prevention of Drugs’ by
Colombo Rovers (Aug-6)

Medical Cleaning Camps: ‘Healthy City - Free
Medical Screening Camp’ for the general public was
held on Nov-13, 20 & 27 (3 days)

JOTA-JOTI TRANSMITION STATIONS
BY ROVERS

Josephian Rovers, Colombo, together with the 75th
Colombo Rovers. join hands with SLSA in operating
JOTA-JOTI Transmission Station at National Scout
Headquarters, Colombo, from 14-16 Oct.

Chilaw Rovers assisted to run Chillaw District’s
JOTA/JOTI Centre from 14-16 Oct.

SPECIAL ACHIEVEMENTS OF ROVERS

10 Rovers attended the 10th APR Regional Scout
Youth Forum as delegates and observers.

On 8th Nov, Rover Scout Senal Jayawardana
(Colombo) who was udergoing the Staff Program at
Kanderstag Internation Scout Centre, USA, received
his BP Award, the highest achievement for a Rover, in
the USA. This was the first time, that the ‘BP Award’
was presented to a Rover Scout on foreign soil.

2 Girl Rover Scouts joined the Youth Leadership
programme of Asia-Pacific Region.

4 young Rovers named S.Amalraj, Dinusha Kulasooriya,
Sashika Munasinghe and Ms. Gimhani Rajapaksha
were appointed as Assistant headquarters Commissioners.

Rover Scout Banuka Karunarathne, a President Scout
of Kingswood College, Kandy, who lives in Japan,
got elected to the National Rover Council in Japan.

IT & NEW DEVELOPMENT

The new Website for SLSA was developed and
handed over to SLSA by SLAF and KDU IT teams.

Repesentations were made to the VNet Web Launch
by UNV on 1st Dec 2022



& Cultural Department)

Team members
Prashanjana Rajapaksha — HQC
Dr Asanka Eriyava — HQC
Damith Chaminda — AHQC
Chamara S. Kaldera - AHQC
Nuwani Kodikara - AHQC
M K Wasantha Udayakumara - AHQC
Shashika Munasinghe — AHQC

Media coverage and publicity for the National Events,
such as Cub scouting for everyone project, Guilwel
reunion, Adults award, National Cubboree, National
Kiddoree etc. Specially a full coverage for the 110th
scout celebration and 116th BP day. And given
newspaper and television coverage and television
discussion program could be highlighted.

MEDIA DEPARTMENT REPORT

Mr Prabath Kularathna
ASSISTANT CHIEF COMMISSIONER
(Media, Public Relations, Better World Framework

As aresult of the guidance of the Chief Commissioner,
a selected number of scouts have been appointed as
Journalists islandwide. And at the moment they are
giving their active participation on each and every
event taken place islandwide.

Each district has been advised to appoint a media
unit through ADC Media. And also the scout page of
MIHIRA news paper has been established once again
and an e-news bulletin of scouting is been published
once every three months. We are currently working on
promoting through the social media now.
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SINGITHI SCOUT SECTION REPORT

Ms. Chandrani Fernando

ASSISTANT CHIEF COMMISSIONER

(Singithi Section and Sabaragamuwa, Uva and North Central
Provincial & District Co-ordination)
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REPORT

OUR TEAM

Name Designation

PROVINCIAL CO-ORDINATION

Mr Ruwan Ariyarathna
ASST CHIEF COMMISSIONER
(Provincial Co-ordination)

District

Mr. Deepal Gunawardana
Mr Sanjaya Perera

Mr Sarath Kumarasingahe
Mr Abdul Mawahib

Special Commissioner

Mr Lakshan Perera

Mr Amithan Karnmegam
Mr P Sashi Kumar

Mr Upul M Ranasinghe

Special Commissioner
Asst HQ Commissioner

Asst HQ Commissioner

Headquarters Commissioner
Headquarters Commissioner

Headquarters Commissioner

Headquarters Commissioner

Monaragala / Badulla / Ampara

Polonnaruwa / Anuradhapura / Kurunegala
Chilaw / Wennappuwa / Puttalam

Kegalle / Avissawella

Point Pedro / KKS / Jaffna / Killinochchi
Vavuniya / Mannar / Mullaitivu / Negombo

Kandy / Homagama / Moratuwa-Piliyandala
Matale / Nuwara Eliya / Kalutara / Wattala
Ja Ela/ Gampaha / Panadura-Horana / Colombo

Trincomalee / Batticaloa / Akk-kalmunai

Galle / Matara / Hambantota

KPI’'S SET FOR THE YEAR 2023

Providing necessary support to organize activities
in the direction with the annual calendar prepared
by the NHQ - As a team we have been co-coordinating
to raise the standard of scouting to higher level.

District efficiency with regards to annual calendar.
Comparatively some districts have been performing
very well, and some Districts are behind. This is
because District officials need more support

Collecting Scout information in the district
through a Survey — Presently the data from districts
is being collected, and by the end of 2023 the survey
report would be compiled.

Preparation of data base at the national level by
collecting the information of the 37 Scout districts
Information required for the data base being
collected, it should be completed by December and
the results will be seen.

Implement the special programmes given by the
Chief Scout Commissioner in the scout Districts
and report the progress to the NHQ - The projects
initiated by Chief Commissioner ,Community Kitchen
Programme, Scouting in new Communities Project.
Nutrivention Programme (Community Health and
Nutrition) as a district co-ordnation team we have
been supporting for its successful implementation.

To provide necessary facilities for Scouting
Programmes proposed to be implemented
within the direction by NTC, NPC and ACC'’s.
The team is providing support for these programmes
to all Districts

To check whether the district coordinators
appointed in charge of each district are working
properly and to the report NHQ about their
Performance - Most of the district coordinators have
been performing well.



REPORT

Safe from Harm National Committee

The National Committee consisted of Dr Rajeeva
Pieris, IC (Chairman), Mr Rohan Wirasekara,
Dr Manjula Sahabandu, ACC and Dr Asanka Eriyawa,
HQC (Convener).

Safe from Harm Facebook recourse page

A dedicated Facebook page https://www.facebook.
com/sfhslsagivesready access for anyone to download
the 3 authoritative documents in Safe from Harm in
Sri Lanka.

The  Budget
of Safe from
Harm

It must be

stressed  that

the  program

continues from

its  inception,

without any spending from SLSA. The
National Committee attended to few
monitory requirements and most work
was done free of charge.

SAFE FROM HARM

Significant Safe from Harm Events in 2022

The Adult Training Syllabus for Safe from Harm
was formulated

The level of knowledge and understanding of SfH
from Singithi to Rover and Leader to Commissioner
is clearly defined under Minimal accepted National
Standards in the 2nd Book of SfH SLSA.

The new “Adult Leader Training Syllabus” has
been formulated for Singithi, Cub, Scout and Rover
Adult leader training and is enumerated clearly in the
Diagram below.



National Committee Chairman appointed as a
member of the WOSM Safe from Harm in World
and Regional Events project (21st February 2022)

Dr Rajeeva Pieris, International Commissioner and
Chairman, SLSA National Committee for Safe from
Harm, was appointed by the World Scout Committee
into the 8 member International, Team Purple,
WOSM writing committee on Safe from Harm for
World Scout events and Regional Scout Events.

Safe from Harm Sessions
at various Adult Training Courses

These sessions were given by a member of the
National Committee using the prepared trilingual
PowerPoint presentation or video recordings
available with the National Committee.

Members of the National Committee have obliged
all requests sent to them in good time to give such
sessions at varied venues in Sri Lanka.
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ANURADHAPURA REPORT

Mr M G Podinilame
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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AVISSAWELLA REPORT

Mrs R M Sudharma Swarnashili Manike
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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BADULLA REPORT

Mr R Thilak Jayasiri
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER

Projects of the Year - Cub Scout Enrollment 04.09.2022

- Chief Commissioner Visit 18.01.2022 - Cub Scout Enrollment 06.09.2022

- Phase | Course For New Leaders 18 & 19.01.2022 - 146th Advance Training Course 09 - 15.09.2022

- Phase | Badge Award Ceremony - Scout Elders Award Ceremony 17.09.2022
for New Leaders 25.01.2022 - Cub Scout Enrollment 13.10.2022

- BP Day Ceremony 22.02.2022 - Rover Scout Phase | Course 14 & 15.10.2022

- President Award Ceremony 23.01.2022 - National Cubboree 17.10.2022 To 19.10.2022

- Annual General Meeting (Maha Saba) 21.03.2022 - Phase | Course for New Teachers

- Scout Enrollment 26.03.2022 (Badulla Zonal) 21 & 22.10.2022]

- Phase | Course For New Teachers 04.04.2022. - Cub Scout Enrollment 10.11.2022

- Singithi & Cub Scout Enrollment 06.04.2022. - Scout Day Celebration 26.11.2022

- Scout Enrollment 28.04.2022 - Cub Scout Enrollment 30.11.2022

- Singithi Scout Enrollment 07.05.2022 - Cub Scout Enrollment 12.12.2022

- Cub Scout Enrollment 20.05.2022 - Cub Scout Enrollment 13.12.2022

- Cub Scout Enrollment 21.05.2022 - Cub Scout Enrollment 13.12.2022

- Phase | Course for Tamil Medium Teachers - Phase | Badge Award Ceremony
10.06.2022 & 11.06.2022 (Tamil Medium) 15.12.2022

- Phase | Badge Award Ceremony - Singithi & Cub Scout Enrollment 16.12.2022
for Tamil Medium Teachers 13.08.2022 - Phase | Course For New Teachers

- Cub Scout Enrollment 25.08.2022 (Mahiyanganaya Zonal) 21 & 22.12.2022

- Dansala 01.09.2022 - 110th National Scout Anniversary 23.12.2022

- Cub Scout Enrollment 03.09.2022 - AGM Meeting (Vidayaka Saba) 31.12.2022



CHILAW REPORT

Mr R H Nalin Ravindra
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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COLOMBO REPORT

Mr Amil Abeysundara
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER

74th Independence Day Celebrations - at the
District Headquarters 4th February 2022.

BP’s Day Celebrations - at S. Thomas’ Preparatory
School 20th February 2022

Service and Public Relationship Week 2022 raised
a total sum of Rs. 4,568,786/=

Colombo District Annual Scout Camporee 2022
from the 2nd to 5th February theme ‘Leaders For A
Better Tomorrow’.

Leaders Training Courses

12th & 13th Mar Phase | Course - Scouts
Colombo District Headquarters (31 participants)
25th & 26th Jun  Phase | Course - Cubs
Nalanda College (19 participants)

25th & 26th Jun  Phase | Course - Singithi
Nalanda College (27 participants)

26th to 28th Aug Phase Il Course - Scouts
Shasthrananda Maha Vidyalaya (23 participants)
26th to 28th Aug Phase Il Course - Cubs
Shasthrananda Maha Vidyalaya (21 participants)
28th to 30th Oct  Phase Il Course - Singithi
Royal College (12 participants)

10th & 11th Dec Phase | Course - CubsRoyal
College (35 participants)

08th May Phase | Conference - Scouts
Colombo District Headquarters (21 participants)
24th Aug Phase | Conference - Singithi
Nalanda College (23 participants)

08th Oct Phase | Conference Cubs
Nalanda College (19 participants)

Refresher Course for Scout Leaders
Colombo Headquarters on 19th & 20th March

Senior Scouts Orientation Programmes
Colombo District Branch Headquarters:

5th & 6th February - 45 participants
2nd & 3rd March - 26 participants
13th & 14th August - 50 participants
24th & 25th September 46 participants
5th & 6th November - 49 participants

Data-base on Scouts’ Progression

With this, the Colombo District can access up-to-
date information of every Scout in the District and
their individual progress

INTER-TROOP COMPETITIONS at the Zahira
College premises on 7th January 2023.

District Commissioner’s Awards

District Commissioner’s Flag 14th Colombo Scout
Group — Wesley College

District Commissioner’s Challenge Shield 30th
Colombo Scout Group — Alethea School District

Commissioner’s Challenge Cup 59th Colombo
Scout Group — Mahanama College

Ramadhan Ifthar Programmes at Hotel Ramada
Renaissance, Colombo on 22nd April Saraswathi
Pooja on 9th October at the Hindu College premises

Poson Poya Sermon and Dansela on 14th June at
Ananda College premises.

110th Anniversary Celebrations on 23rd December
at the Galle Face Green.

Online Scout Shop

This facilitates Scouts to acquire their Scouting
needs including Scouting materials & equipment,
books, badges, camping equipment delivered and
brought right up to your doorstep.

Scout Care Community Kitchen ongoing project
has served nearly 10,000 out-patients

Colombo Rovers
‘Leadership in Action” Outbound Training 8th Oct
2022 at Serendib Adventure Base, Kithulgala

Rambling Workshop 1l 7th August 2022 at
St. Joseph’s College, Colombo 10

The District Rover Crew celebrated its 50th
Anniversary a series of Multi-Religious Observances
were organized by the Crew.

Splash ’22 — Colombo Rovers Sports Day was held
on 4th June 2022, at Dehiwala Beach

Scout Talk *22 was held on the International Youth
Day, 12th August 2022 from 6.00 p.m onwards at
Colombo Scouts Headquarters

‘e8dcg, with Kids’ — The Colombo Scouts Sinhala
and Hindu New Year Celebration on 30th April 2022
at the Sri Jinananda Child Development Center

4th Colombo Scout Youth Forum 2022 themed
‘Rekindling the Scout Spirit” held from 25th — 27th
February 2022 in hydrid format at Ministry of
Environment Auditorium as well as virtually.



HOMAGAMA REPORT

Mr R A Anil Perera (until 06.11.2022)

Mrs K A Chandrapathma (since 09.11.2022)
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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KALUTARA REPORT

Mr N N Namal P Gurusinghe
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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KEGALLE REPORT

Mr A M Udeni Nandalal (ntil 06.11.2022)

Mr W G Prasad Bandara Walpola (since 07.11.2022)
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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MORATUWA/PILIYANDALA REPORT

Mr J G Prabath until 14.03.2022)
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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NEGOMBO REPORT

Mr RW M R O Rodrigo (since 01.10.2022)
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER

74th INDEPENDENCE DAY CELEBRATION
04th Feb St.Mary’s College, Negombo

In  conjunction with the 74th independence
celebration, the independence celebration organized
by the Negombo district scout association was held
in a grand manner on 04th Feb at St. Mary College
Negombo. Rear Admiral Rohan Amarasinghe
participated as the Chief Guest.

BLOOD DONATION CAMP
20th March High School Katunayaka

The Blood Donation camp organized by the Negombo
district Sea Rover scouts was held on 20th March at
High School Katunayaka

MINI GADGETS COMPETITION
16th — 21st April Online

Youth Advisory Board

VESAK MAL DANSALA
15th May Abesekararamaya

The Vesak Mal Dansala organized by the Negombo
district Sea Rover scouts was held on 15th may at
Abesekararamaya Negombo.

COMMUNITY KITCHEN
07th July Kochchikade Toppuwa pre school and
Thoppuwa Philip Neri College

13TH NATIONAL CABBOREE
16 — 18th Sep Loyola College & Maris Stella College

13th National Caboree held successfully on the 16th
- 18th of September 2022 at Maris Stella College and
Loyola College premises.

PRESIDENT SCOUT EVALUATION CAMP
07th - 09th Oct St. Peter’s College Negombo

The event under the leadership of District
Commissioner Mr. Romesh Rodrigo, with the
participation of ADCs. The training camp was
successfully conducted for 20 scouts. Headquarters
Commissioner Mr. Lakshan Perera also participated
as the chief guest.

FAREWELL OF FORMER DC AND
INDUCTION CEREMONY OF NEW DC
29th Oct Loyola College

The newly appointed District Commissioner
Mr. Romesh Rodrigo officially assumed duties on 29
October. Chief Commissioner Mr. Janaprith Fernando,
Deputy Chief Commissioner Mr. M.H.F. Muheed,
Asst Chief Commissioner Dr. Manjula Sahabandu,
Headquarters Commissioner Mr. Lakshan Perera and
Zonal Directors participated in the ceremony.

1ST NATIONAL KIDOREE
26th Nov Viharamahadevi Park Colombo

More than five hundred Negombo Singithi Scouts
participated in the 1st National Kidoriya.

PHASE 01 TRAINING
03rd — 04th Dec Harischandra College

Phase 01 Seminar was successfully conducted on
03/04 Dec at Harischandra College Negombo with
the Participation of 148 Scout leaders.

110TH ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATION
23rd Dec Harischandra College

On the 110th Anniversary of the Sri Lanka scout
movement, the Negombo district scout branch
organized a celebratory walk and campfire display
on the 23rd of December.



Mr J G Terence
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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RATHNAPURA REPORT

Mr M A Mahanama
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER
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WATTALA/JA-ELA REPORT

Mr Duminda Sampath
DISTRICT COMMISSIONER

First Scout Leaders Meeting & Tea Party 2022
2022.01.08 St. Anthony’s College, Wattala
Cub Scouting for Everyone Project 3 - National
2022.01.29 Royal College , Colombo
Singithi Work Shop - National

2022.01.30 D S Senanayake C , Colombo

Independence Day Celebration 2022
2022.02.04 Sri Dheerananda Piriven, Makola

B.P Day Competition 2022
2022.02.04 Sri Dheerananda Piriven, Makola

Phase Il Leader’s Training course 2022
2022.02.11-13 John Paul Center , Ja-Ela

National Training Seminar 2022
2022.02.19 Sampath Bank HQ, Colombo

District President Badge Awarding Ceremony
2022.02.20 Christ King College, Tudella

International Mother Language Day 2022
2022.02.21 National — Independence Square

President Scout Parchment Ceremony
2022.02.23 Western Province Building

District Media Unit Opening Ceremony
2022.03.01  Online

B P Day Celebration 2022

2022.03.11 Sri Dheerananda Piriven, Makola
Bodhi Puja Pinkama
2022.03.12 Sudharshanarama Temple,

Phase | Leader’s Training Course 2022
2022.03.18-10 Lyceum Int. School, Wattala

First Aid Training Programme 2022

2022.04.02 Viharamahadevi Balika V, K’bathgoda
Venture Hike Basic Training Programme
2022.04.03 Christ King College, Tudella
Gilwell Re Union 2022

2022.06.18-19 Matara District

Adults Scout Awards Ceramony 2022
2022.07.17 Goldi Sands Hotel, Negombo
Venture Hike Basic Training Programme
2022.08.13 Christ King College, Tudella
“Scout Care” Programme

2022.08.16 Dharmapala Vidyalaya, Hunupitiya
Cub Scout Bronze Star training Programme
2022.08.27 Heenkenda Primary C, Ragama
Awareness Pro. President Award Interview
2022.08.27 online

Phase | Training

course - Seminar

2022.09.10 St. Anthony’s College, Wattala
Beach Cleaning Programme 2022
2022.09.11 Uswetakeiyawa Beach

13th National “Cubboree”

2022.09.16-18 De Mazenod College, Kandana
Scout Week 2022

2022.09.24-30 Sri Dharmaloka C - Kelaniya
Walk for Gold

2022.09.25 National

National Scout Week 2022

2022.09.24-30 National

World Children’s day Programme
2022.10.01 “Sahana” Children Orphanage,
Global Scout Bycicle Jamboree 2022
2022.10.08-10 National

JOTA/JOTI

2022.10.14-16 OKI International S, Wattala
District Rally 2022

2022.11.4-8  Sri Dharmaloka C - Kelaniya
1st National “Kiddoree” - National
2022.11.26 Viharamahadevi Park, Colombo
Scout Leader’s Annual Trip

2022.12.04 Riverston, Matale

Phase | Training course (Singithi) - Seminar
2022.12.06 Karunarathne Buddhist P.C
Cub Scout Get to Gather - National

2022.12.07 Ranmal Hotel - Moratuwa
Christmas Carols 2022
2022.12.10 Lyceum Int. School, Wattala

110 Years Celebration Walk

2022.12.23 Nawaloka Grounds, Welisara
Global Scout Kitchen Jamboree 2022
2022.12.27 Dharanagama M.V. Siyambalape
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KPMG Tel +94 - 11 542 6426

(Chartered Accountants) Fax +94 - 11 244 5872
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha, +94 - 11 244 6058
P. O. Box 186, Internet www.kpmg.com/lk

Colombo 00300, Sri Lanka.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sri Lanka Scout Association (“the Association™), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31* December, 2022, and the statement of income and expenditure,
changes in funds, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies set out in pages 4 to 25.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Association as at 31% December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for
SMEs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, the Association has recorded cost of property, plant and
equipment of Rs. 159,470,276/ and related accumulated depreciation of Rs. 33,991,485/- as at 31* December
2022. We were unable to verify the completeness, accuracy, existence and valuation of these balances in the
absence of proper fixed asset register with details including purchase dates, accumulated depreciation and
asset categories. Accordingly, we were unable to determine what adjustments might be necessary to the
statement of financial position, statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in funds and
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31% December 2022, and for the comparative year ended 31*
December 2021.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion

Other Information

The Executive committee (“Committee™) is responsible for the other information. These Financial statements
do not comprise other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

C.P. Jayalilake FCA T.J.S Rajakarier FCA WW.J.C Perera FCA

Ms. S. Joseph FCA Ms S M.B. Jayasekara FCA W.K.D.C Abeyrathne FCA

S T.D L. Perera FCA G AU Karunaraine FCA RM.D.B Rajapakse FCA
KPMG, a Sri Lankan partnership and a member firm of the Ms B K D.T.N. Rodrigo FCA R.H Rajan FCA M.N.M Shameel FCA
KPMG global organization of independent member firms Ms C.T.K.N, Perera ACA A.M R P. Alahakoon ACA Ms. P.M K. Sumanasekara FCA
affiliated with KPMG Interational Limited, a private Principals - S.R.I. Perera FCMA(UK), LLB, Attorney-at-Law, H S. Goonewardene ACA,

English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. Ms F.R. Zlyard FCMA (UK), FTII



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities of Committee Members for the financial statements

Committee is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with SLFRS for SMEs, and for such internal control as committee determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, committee is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Committee either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAus, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by committee.

Conclude on the appropriateness of committee’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION (CONTINUED)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo, Sri Lanka
26t May, 2023



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December, 2022 2021
Note Rs. Rs
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 125,478,792 109,054,460
Capital work-in-progress 5 19,700,763
Intangible assets 6 49,037 41,921
Total non-current assets 125,527,829 128,797,144
Current assets
Inventories 7 9,502,354 8,249,543
Trade and other receivables 8 30,776,866 14,529,074
Fixed deposits 9 25,117,871 23,897,125
Cash and cash equivalents 10 31,933,128 13,017,677
Total current assets 97,330,219 59,693,419
Total assets 222,858,048 188,490,563
Funds and liabilities
Funds
Accumulated funds
Sri Lanka scout association - headquarters 11.1 50,940,212 33,617,347
Sri Lanka scout association -scout shop 11.2 2,932,593 (649,983)
Reserves and funds 12 117,995,354 117,995,354
Designated fund 13 930,770 930,770
Total funds 172,798,929 151,893,488
Non-current liabilities
Building rent security deposit 3,660,000 3,660,000
Retirement benefit obligations 14 2,128,224 2,865,300
Other payables 15 686,651
Total non-current liabilities 5,788,224 7,211,951
Current Liabilities
Trade, other payables and advances received 16 43,268,587 25,943,305
Bank overdraft 10 1,002,308 3,441,820
Total current liabilities 44,270,895 29,385,125
Total funds and liabilities 222,858,048 188,490,564

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these
Financial Statements of the Association set out on pages 4 to 25. Auditor's report is given on pages 1 to 3.

The Executive Committee members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial
in accordance with SLFRS for SMEs.
and signed for and on behalf of the Executive Committee of Sri Lanka Scout Association.

Mr Mr.
Chairman Treasurer

26th May 2023
Colombo



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31st December,

Income

Revenue - Headquarters
Net income on Scout Shop
Other operating income
Total income
Expenditure
Administrative expenses
Other operational expenses

Total expenses

Surplus /(Deficit) before tax
Income tax expense

Surplus /(Deficit) after tax

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial (gain)/loss on retirement benefit obligation
Total comprehensive income for the year

Note

17

18

19

20

21

22

14

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
23,315,774 22,722,283
3,582,576 (3,228,049)
19,955,123 4,771,352
46,853,473 24,265,586
(18,640,684) (18,068,855)
(8,205,623) (9,840,648)
(26,846,307) (27,909,502)
20,007,167 (3,643,916)
(491,434) (262,566)
19,515,733 (3,906,482)
1,389,709 88,248
20,905,442 (3.818,234)

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral
part of these Financial Statements of the Association set out on pages 4 to 25. Auditor's report is given

on pages 1 to 3.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year ended 31% December,

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/deficit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Interest income

Provision for gratuity

Provision for impairment of trade receivable
Adjustment to amortization of intangible assets

Changes in;

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash flow used in operating activities

Payment of gratuity
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Net movement in fixed deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

14

16

14

10

2022
Rs.

20,007,167

4,484,075
38,557
(1,512,217)
652,634
(5,878,610)
(45,673)
17,745,933

(1,252,811)
(10,369,182)
16,147,190

4,525,197

22,271,130

(668,780)
(538,863)
1,512,217
(1,220,745)
(916,171)

21,354,959
9,575,862
30,930,820

2021
Rs.

(3,643,916)

4,091,785

39,153
(1,875,399)

322,585

(1,065,792)

2,927,953
(8,793,899)
5,715,637

(150,308)

(285,000)
(1,501,100)

(239,760)
(217,671)
1,875,399
(1,693,176)
(275,208)

(1,776,308)
11,352,170
9,575,862

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part
of these Financial Statements of the Association set out on pages 4 to 25. Auditor's report is given on

pages 1to 3.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1 Reporting Entity

The Association incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka has been established under the Ceylon Scout
Council (incorporation) Act No.13 of 1957. The registered office of the Association is located at 65/9 Sir
Chittampalam A Gardiner Mawatha, Colombo 02.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

During the year, the principal activities of the Association were initiating programmers aimed at promoting
Scouting.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Institute which comprise of the statement of financial position, statement of
income and expenditure and accumulated fund and statement of cash flows together with the accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements of the institute as at 31st December 2021 and for the year then
ended are prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium - sized
Entities ("SLFRS for SMEs) adopted by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL).

2.2 Responsibility for Financial statements
The committee members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.
2.3 Approval of Financial Statements by Committee members

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2022, were authorized for issue by the
Committee members on 26" May 2023.

The Committee members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.
2.4 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and applied consistently with no
adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the financial statements.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis that the Association would continue as a going
concern for the foreseeable future.

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

The Financial statements are presented in Sri Lanka Rupees (LKR), which is the Association’s functional
and presentation currency.



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2.6 Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with SLFRS for SMEs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised if the revision affect only that period or in the period or revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

2.7 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items are presented separately in the financial statements. Items of a

dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

Certain comparative amounts in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.

a) Foreign Currency Translation

All transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Sri Lanka Rupees at the foreign exchange
rates prevailing at the time of such transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into Sri Lanka Rupees at the foreign
exchange rates prevailing on that date. The foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognized in the Statement of income and expenditure and accumulated fund.

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their
fair value and are used by the Association in the management of its short-term commitments. The
statement of Cash Flow is reported based on the indirect method.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the Cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for
their intended use and when the group of asset to obligation to remove the asset or restore the site,
an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs.



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (Cont.)
(i) Recognition and measurement (Cont.)

When an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Association incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- line basis in profit or loss over
the estimated useful lives of each component.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed and are
ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed

and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives of Property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life Rate
Building 40 2.5%
Office Equipment 10 10%
Furniture and Fittings 13.33 7.5%
Motor Vehicle 5 20%
Computer Equipment 5 20%
Name Board 13.33 7.5%
Camp Equipment 10 10%

All assets are depreciated from the month of the asset is available for use up to the month of disposal and
depreciation is charged commencing from the year in which the assets was purchased or constructed, and no
depreciation is charged in the year of disposal.

(iv) Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital work-in-progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the time of the first utilization of the
asset.

(d) Intangible Assets
(i) Cost

Intangible assets Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Cost
is usually determined as the amount paid by the Group. Amortization is recognized together with deprecj ation
in profit or loss. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to annual reviews of
impairment.

10



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (Cont.)
(d) Intangible Assets (continued)
(ii) Amortization

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets are as follows.

Asset Category Useful Life Rate
0,
Software R 20%
(e) Inventory

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated selling expenses. The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

(f) Funds
i) Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds are those that are available for use by the organization at the discretion of the Committee, in
furtherance of the general objectives of the organization and which are not designated for any specific purpose.

ii) Restricted funds

Where the grants are received for use in an identified project or activity, such funds are held in a restricted fund
account and transferred to the statement of income and expenditure to match with expenses incurred in respect
of identified project. Utilized funds are held in their respective fund accounts and included under accumulated
fund in the statement of financial position until such time as they are required.

iii) Designated funds

Unrestricted funds designated by the Committee for a specific purpose are identified as designated funds. The
activities for which these funds may be used are identified in the financial statements.

(g) Employee Benefit
Q) Defined contribution plan

Obligations to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement as incurred. The
College contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees as Provident Fund and Trust Fund
contribution respectively.

(ii) Defined benefit plan

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year of service of all employees. However,
according to the Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983, payment of the liability arises only on completion of five years of
continued service. The liability is not externally funded, nor is actuarially valued. The Gratuity Liability is
valued using a Gratuity Formula method.

11



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (Cont.)
(h) Liabilities and Provisions

Liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits. Obligations payable on demand-or within one year of the reporting date are treated as current liabilities
in the statement of financial position. Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting date are treated as
non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Association has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation.

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Institute and
the revenue can be reliably measured on an accrual basis. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of
revenue.

(i) Membership Fee income

Membership fee income is accounted on time accrual basis.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income represents the interest on fixed deposits and is accounted on accrual basis.
(iii) Management fee income

The association has entered in/ to a management agreement with fairway Developments Limited (Manager)
whereas the employer (Association) requires a manager to manage, improve, construct, upon by providing the
necessary resources, develop and utilize and maintain the premises known as Sri Lanka Scout Association
National Headquarters (B.P. House). The agreement has commenced on 151 December 2014 unless terminated
earlier in accordance with its terms, end on 30th November 2039. The employer was granted the allotments of
land marked lots 1 and 2 in p. plan no. 6593 and joint possession of the premises to enable the manager to
achieve the objects of the agreement and cover the costs and expenses incurred with a reasonable return therefor.
The Association is occupying the exclusively the upper ground floor excluding the commeon area and Fairway
Developments limited is responsible and has the control over the balance area of the premises. Throughout the
validity of the agreement, manager should pay the employer as a fixed guaranteed profit which is a sum of Rs.
1,337,057/- (Rs.45% 26,950 Square Feet) payable on or before 15th of each calendar month subject to any
deductions due from the employer. This payment will be enhanced by 5% at the end of each three-year period.

The management fee income represents the amount received from Fairway Developments limited and is
accounted on accrual basis.

(i) Expenses

All expenditure incurred in the operations of the business and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of
efficiency have been charged to income in arriving at the Association's profit/loss for the year.

1)) Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

12



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES (Cont.)
(k) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(I) Events occurring after the reporting date

All material post reporting events have been considered and where appropriate adjustments or disclosures have
been made in respective notes to the financial statements.

(m) Capital commitments and contingencies

Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from a past event and would be confirmed only on
the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events, which are beyond the Association's control.

Commitments and contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to the financial statements.

13
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SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31st December,

5

Capital work in progress

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Capitalized during the year

Balance at the end of the year

2022 2021
Notes Rs. Rs.
19,700,763 19,483,092
538,863 217,671
(20,239,626) -
- 19,700,763

Work and installation of Pedro Camp was completed and transferred to the property, plant and equipment.

As at 31st December,

6

7.1

Intangible assets

Cost

Balance at 1* January
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31% December

Amortisation

Balance at 1* Januray

Amortization during the year

Correction of duplicate amortization from prior year
Balance as at 31" December

Carrying value

Inventories
Scout shop (Note 7.1)

Inventory - Scout shop
Badges

Books

General

Stickers

Other Stationary

Trade and other receivable

Headquarters

Prepayments And Advances

Other Receivable

Building rent income receivable

Administrative income receivable-shop

Scout shop advances and receivable

Credit card receivable

Membership fee receivable

24th world scout jamboree receivable

Public Relations and service week income receivable
Public Relations and service week sponsership receivable
WHT receivable

Scout shop management fee advance

Receivable from scout association shop

Provision for receivables

15

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
277,785 277,785
277,785 277,785
235,864 196,711
38,557 39,153
(45,673)
228,748 235,864
49,037 41,921
9,502,354 8,249,543
9,502,354 8,249,543
3,750,738 485,244
1,714,413 5,974,404
3,037,894 1,729,730
41,507 60,165
957,803
9,502,354 8,249,543
8.1 25,273,956 2,416,448
8.2 89,600 330,536
1,337,057 4,011,171
. 2,800,000
. 628,510
. 107,420
o 932,590
2,433,689 2,558,688
90,713 1,475,546
- 500,000
1,490,903 1,490,903
- 560,000
3,773,427 3,005,676
(4,750,940) (8,608.,589)
29,738,404 12,208,898




SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31st December,

8 Trade and other receivable (Continued)
Prepayments And Advances

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

10

Advances

10th National jumboree site visit
25th world scout jamboree payments in advance

Community Kitchen Project

Scouting In New Communities - SNC Project
Cub Scouting For Everyone -CSE /MOP project

Other Receivables

Staff loan and festival advance

Other Receivables

Scout shop
Advance
Debtors balance

Management fee advance - transfer
Receivable from scout association head quarters

WHT receivable
Provision for bad debtors

25th world scout jamboree payments in advance

Notes

84

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
3,264,101 2,416,448
27,390 -
19,425,994 -
116,210
369,000 -
2,071,261 -
25,273,956 2,416,448
89,600 325,600
- 4,936
89,600 330,536
1,012,000 12,000
1,552,793 3,672,301
- 560,000
- 1,623,168
4,026 4,025
(1,530,358) (3,551,319)
1,038,462 2,320,175
30,776,866 14,529,074

This balance contains expenses incurred during the year under review for 25th world scout jamboree to be held in 2023 which

are prepaid as at the reporting date.

Fixed deposits

Headquarters

Bank of Ceylon
Peoples Bank

Scout shop
Bank of Ceylon
People's Bank

Cash and cash equivalents
Headquarters

Peoples Bank

Bank of Ceylon

Sampath Bank

National Savings Bank
Cash in hand

Scout shop
Peoples bank
Bank of ceylon
Cash in hand

Bank overdraft
Headquarters
Peoples bank

Cash and cash equivalents

16

1,650,980 1,568,640
22,474,160 21,366,654
24,125,139 22,935,295

150,000 150,000
842,731 811,831
992,731 961,831
25,117,871 23,897,125
22,501,554 8,226,785
588,530 586,530
1,440,914 186,181
1,145,235 1,109,168
22,795 147.764
25,699,027 10,256,429
5,991,311 2,409,369
102,123 94,371
140,667 257,509

6,234,101 2,761,249
31,933,128 13,017,677
(1,002,308) _ (3.441.8)p)
(1,002,308)  (3,441,80)
30,930,820 9.575.858



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31st December,

11 Accumulated funds
11.1 Headquarters
Balance at the beginning of the year
Surplus /(Deficit) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

11.2 Scout shop
Balance at the beginning of the year
Surplus / ( Deficit) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

12 Other reserves and funds
Headquarters
Campsite Development
Handicapped scout fund
J M De saram - gillwel fund
Jamboree and overseas event fund
J S L. Fernando fund
Scout foundation fund
New building fund
UNDP
Staff loan fund
Scout fund

Scout shop
Reserves and other funds
Baladakshaya newspaper

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
33,617,346 34,234,379
17,322,866 (617,033)
50,940,212 33,617,346
(649,983) 2,551,212
3,582,576 (3,201,195)
2,932,593 (649,983)
2,228,343 2,228,343
10,000 10,000
25,000 25,000
194,767 194,767
45,975 45,975
6,498 6,498
110,422,526 110,422,526
3,401,260 3,401,260
128,252 128,252
782,500 782,500
117,245,121 117,245,121
475,000 475,000
275,233 275,233
750,233 750,233
117,995,354 117,995,354

The purpose of this reserves and funds is to provide scholarship to students promote publications
and sponsorships to the Jamboree and other events held by the association. These reserves and the

funds have been originated through the donations received from local as well as oversease members

and organisations.

As at 31st December,

13 Designated funds
Opening balance
Closing balance

2022 2021

Rs. Rs.
930,770 930,770
930,770 930,770

The fund consists of the balance remaining from a previously completed project.



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31st December,

14

15

16

Retirement benefit obligation

Headquarters

Balance at the beginning of the year

Expense recognised in income and expenditure
Actuarial (gains)/losses

Payments made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Scout shop

Balance at the beginning of the year

Expense recognized in Income and expenditure
Actuarial (gains)/losses

Payments made during the year
Balance at the end of tear
Total balance at the end of the year

Notes

2022 2021

Rs. Rs.
2,762,082 2,812,746
652,634 322,585
(1,389,709) (88,248)
2,025,007 3,047,082
- (285,000)
2,025,007 2,762,082
103,217 103,217
103,217 103,217
103,217 103.217
2,128,224 2,865,299

The retirement benefit obligation of the Association is calculated based on Projected Unit Credit (PUC)
method. The key assumptions used in determining the above as follows:

a) Discount rate

b) Expected annual average salary increment
¢) Staff turnover factor

d) Retirement age

It is also assumed that the Association will continue as a going concern.

Other payables

29th APR jamboree
Sundry payable

World scout conference

Trade, other payable and advance received
Headquarter

Audit fee payable

Refundable deposit

Membership fee payable to world scout bureau
Transferred from scout association shop
Accrued expenses

10th National Jamboree

25th world scout jamboree Fees Collection From Partcipants
Unidentified deposit

24th World Scout Jam.-America Advance
Scouting in new Communities-SNC Project
Cub Scouting for Everyone-CSE/MOP Project
Death Donation Fund

Accounting Fees Payable

Adult Award - Photo Graphy Payables
Gratuity payable

18

16.1

16.2

18.5% 16%
14% 8%
19% 12%
60 Years 60 Years
- 500,950
- 185,341
- 360
- 686,651
360,000 623,930
118,000 103,000
- 2,424,447
B 992,808
3,149,247 2,725,806
339,750 339,750
20,359,790 .
- 487,565
- 3,657,135
3,154,000
1,373,260 -
25,000
90,000 -
103,400 -
- 285,000
29,072,447 11,639,441




SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31st December,

16

16.1

16.2

Notes

Trade, other payable and advance received (Cont.)
Scout shop

Payable to scout association Head Quarters
Administrative income payable

Scout shop creditors

Accrued expenses

Unidentified deposit

Advance received from customers

Membership fee payable to world scout bureau

2022
Rs.

3,773,427
10,332,733
89,980

14,196,140
43,268,587

2021
Rs.

3,005,676
4,000,000
5,235,200
7,000
1,966,008
89980
14,303,864
25,943,305

The world scout bureau waived off the membership fees for 2022 due to the economic situation of the

country.

25th world scout jamboree fees collection from participants

This balance contains cash collected from participants during the year under review for 25th world scout

jamboree which is planned to be held in 2023.

As at 31st December,

17

17.1

17.2

Revenue - Headquarters
International event income 17.1
Membership fees
Life Member Ship Fees
Building Rent
Ministry of Education Grant
National Rover Moot income
Cub Scouting
Donation
13th National Cubboree 17.2
Public relations and service week income
Public relations and service week sponsership income
APR Project for Tide Turners Plastic Challenge

International event income
World Scout Conference
Global Cultural Jamboree

Net income on projects

Description Income /Expenses

Related Income

3th National Cubb
13th National Cubboree Related Expense

Net income on 13th National cubboree

19

2022
Rs.

2,598,441
260,000
16,044,682

143,650
429,075
456,700

3,383,226

23,315,774

2022
Rs.
8,102,963
(7,646,263)
456,700

2021
Rs.

1,721,050
1,441,177

16,363,029
709,545
217,500

100,000

1,475,546
500,000
194,436

22,722,283

138,300

1,582,750
1,721,050

2021
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For the year ended 31st December

18 Net income on Scout Shop

Income from scout shop

Cost of sale

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Purchases during the year

Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of Sales

Profit/(loss) on trading
Add: Other Income

Less: Overheads
Administration Expenses
Finance Expenses

Net income on Scout Shop

18.1 Other Income
Creditors written off
Interest income
Net over provisions
Other operating income
Un categorized income
Supplier registration fee income

18.1.1 Un categorized income

Direct bank deposits made by district associations for various projects.

18.2 Administration Expenses
Salary and allowances
E P F contribution
E T F contribution
Printing & Stationery
Administrative expenses of HQ
Repairs and maintenance
Fees for stock taking

18.3 Finance Expenses- Shop
Bank charges

20

Notes

18.1

18.2
18.3

18.1.1

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
25,318,976 4,958,945
8,249,543 11,177,496
25,467,033 3,834,735
33,716,576 15,012,231
(9,502,354) (8,249,543)
24,214,222 6,762,688
1,104,754 (1,803,743)
4,202,913 37,266
1,720,667 1,459,790
4,424 1,782
1,725,091 1,461,572
3,582,576 (3,228,049)
1,757,188 -
52,403 33,266
149,729 -
10,000 -
2,233,593 -
- 4,000
4,202,913 37,266
400,635 129,785
46,226 21,484
11,556 5,371
11,250 -
1,200,000 1,200,000
51,000 24,000
- 79.150
1,720,667 1,459,790
4,424 1,782
4,424 1,782




SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31st December 2022 2021
Notes Rs. Rs.
19 Other operating income

19.1 Headquarter

Interest income on fixed deposit 1,189,845 1,663,886
Interest income on savings accounts 269,970 178,247
Camp income - Mirigama 190,000 56,000
Net income on SANSO Project 19.1.1 126,116

Over provisions 19.1.3 6,893,213

Sundry income 3,800

Cash shortage recovery 24,000

Supplier registration 4,000

Un categorised income 102,750

Camp income - Pedro 106,250

Group registration 6,200 5,400
President Scout Award 78,025

Foreign exchange gain 5,222,840 303,754
Un Catergoried Income 19.1.2 3,541,741

Training course 641,075 326,550
Intangible assets amotization over provision 45,673

Death Donation received 46,500

Donation for DC conference 242,000

Income on Gilwel Reunion 19.1.1 3,390

Festival advance recovery 46,000
Income on Scout care 3 project 19.1.1 17,735 991,515
Administrative income-Shop 1,200,000 1,2

19,955,123 4,771,352

19.1.1 Net income on projects

2022 2021
Description Income /Expenses
Rs. Rs.
SANSO Project Related income 1,042,725
Related expense (916,609)
Net income on SANSO Project 126,116
Gilwel Reunion Related income 363,390
Related expense (360.,000)
Net income on Gilwel Reunion 3,390
Scout care 3 project Related income 1,417,719 991,515
Related expense (1,399,984) 330,000
Net income on Scout care 3 project 17.735
19.1.2 Un catergorized income
This balance is the direct bank deposits made by district associations for various projects.
19.1.3 Over provisions
Gratuity 86,100
World Scout Camp 360
Sundry payable 185,341
APR Jamboree 500,950
24th World Scout Jamboree 3,657,135
Abance expenses 38,880
Membership fees 2,424,447
13

The committee reviewed and approved the above reversal of over provisions as at the reporting date.

19.1.4 Foreign exchange gain
This is the currency fluctuation difference of the foreign currency bank account as at 31st December 2022

21
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20 Administration expenses
Headquarters
Audit fees
Professional fee
Depreciation
E P F contribution
E T F contribution
Rates and taxes
Electricity charges
Gratuity

Membership fees to world's scout bureau

Postage, stamps and telegrams
Printing and stationery

Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and allowances

Sundry expenses

Laundry expense

Telephone and internet expenses
Travelling and transport charges
Commissioners and Staff-welfare
Compensation

DC Conference

Net expense on Adult Award
NHQ Expenses

Shop Expenses

Internal Audit Fees

Water

Cleaning charges

Annual & special general meeting
Advertisement expenses

Web site development expenses
Death Donation

Amotization expenses

District Cordination

Printing of job cards

Legal fee

Management Fee

Accounting fees

20.1 Net expense on Adult Award

Description

Adult Award

Notes

20.1

Income/Expense

Related income
Related expense

22

2022
Rs.

360,000

4,484,075
420,911
105,878

1,214,505
269,036
652,633

20,630
481,227
152,765

4,048,518

93,198

385,531
117,685
408,193
475,000
763,600
1,604,883
13,140
673,655
245,748
93,957
485,300
129,430
8,600
22,500
93,000
38,557
40,000

262,910
6,120
469,500
18,640,684

2022
Rs.
(25,000)
1,629,883
1,604,883

2021
Rs.

330,000
380,780
4,091,784
581,766
128,876
2,896,276
253,757
322,585
2,417,110
59,676
212,303
131,680
3,591,876
61,911
750
407,755
99,158
307,315

53,200
382,433
545,113

8,600

15,000

39,154

420,000
295,000

35,000
18,068,856

2021
Rs.



SRI LANKA SCOUT ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December,

21
21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4

Other operational expenses
Scouting development expenses
Training expenses

Awards and souvenirs

PSA Interview

Media expenses

Membership expenses - badges
Special programme expenses
MOP project

Scouting traning programme and course expenses
Cub section

Courses expenses

Rover

Singithi scouting

Camp site expenses
(Mirigama and pedro)
Salaries and allowances
E P F contribution

E T F contribution
Electricity charges
Laundry expenses
Repair and maintenance
Telephone expenses
Television expenses
Printing and stationery
Rate and taxes

Other expense

Welfare

Re-opening expenses
Postage and delivery
Travelling and transport

Jamboree and other events

Rover Moot

International event expenses

Net expenses on 1st National Kidoree

24th World Jamboree USD 150 balance refund
10th National jumboree registration refund
Scout care project

23

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
1,580,775 3,480
379,447 -
85,000 -
176,512 77,650
514,627 525,000
308,601 140,375
- 821,457
3,044,962 1,567,962
483,598 1,189,130
- 774,251
23,416 7,000
254,048 20,853
761,062 1,991,234
1,918,380 1,341,478
210,900 101,634
52,725 25,409
167,286 392,990
20,705 3,160
119,830 117,528
34,047 17,868
10,519 4991.74
40,793 4,298
27,140 54,280
95,384 237,837
9,839 10,859
- 170,680
5,430 600
14,360 18,830
2,727,337 2,502,442
- 843,056
21.4.1 90,570 2,425,708
21.4.2 338,510 -
1,003,200 -
64,500 -
- 330,000
1,496,780 3,598,764
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21 Other operational expenses (Continued)
21.4.1 International events expenses
International Jambore
International Event
Global cultural jamboree
World scout conference

21.4.2 Net se on

Description Income /Expenses

1st National Kidoree Related .expense
Related income

Net expense on 1st National Kidoree

21.5 Finance expenses-HQ
Bank charges - headquarters
ETF Penalty

Total other operational expenses-HQ

22 Tax expenses
Income tax
Current tax expense (Note 22.1)

22.1 Reconcilliation of accounting profit to income tax expense
Profit/Loss before tax
(-) Non-business income
Aggregated dissallowable expenses
Aggregated allowable expenses
Business income/(loss)
Investment income
Net taxable income

Income tax at 14%
Income tax at 30%
Income tax expense

2022

63,020
27,550

90,570

2022
Rs.
2,740,860
(2,402,350)
338,510

153,829
21,652
175,482

8,205,623

491
491,434

19,961,492
(1,512,217)
30,185,476
(47,913,179)
721,572
1,512,217
2,233,790

156,365
335,068
491,434

2021
Rs.
1,200,000
1,111,599

114,109
2,425,708

2021
Rs.

180,245
180,245

9,840,647

262,566
262,566

(3,643,920)
(1,875,399)

18,716,166
(15,416,467)

(2,219,620)
1,875,399

(344,221)
262,566

262,566

The Association is liable for income tax expense under the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017 and
amendments thereto at the rate of 14% for the first 6 months & 30% for the last 6 months (2021 : 302%)

on the business income and the investment income,

The above current tax provision is made only for financial reporting purpose hence do not reflect the

income tax liability for the year as per tax jurisdiction.

24
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23

24

25

26

Commitment and Contingent Liabilities
The Association has no outstanding commitments and significant contingencies as at the reporting date.

Events after reporting period
There were no material events that occurred after the reporting date which require adjustment to or disclosures in the
financial statements other than the matter described in note 25

Impact arising from the prevailing situation in the country

The Association understands that the current economic conditions affect the operations and financial performance and
position, thereby, is in the process of assessing the impact from the macroeconomic factors including the movement of
interest rate, inflation rate, foreign exchange rates, and other market behaviors. The volatility of policy rates affects the
retirement benefit obligation valuation, interest expense/income and exchange gain or loss from from foreign currency
transactions and translations.

The Committee Members' responsibility statement
The Members of the Executive Committee are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with SLFRS for SMEs.

25
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